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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY

MBGEERBE

2014
—E-mEF
RMB’000

AR¥ T

4,169,785

2,845,196

27,053

1,986,784

2010 2011 2012 2013
—T-TF —T——F —EB—fF —2—=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AR®BFT ARBFT ARETFT
Results ES
Revenue A 2,504,733 3,018,871 3,301,498 3,422,033
Gross profit EF 284,697 449,808 388,282 300,352
Operating profit 482 A 181,985 303,392 258,796 141,361
Profit for the year NG FE ) 163,345 230,177 221,921 124,161
Profit attributable to shareholders % 5 fE 1k &4 161,711 228,990 219,647 122,198
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE 1,782,107 2,013,379 2,441,812 3,005,589
Total liabilities wafs 324,001 357,242 575,512 1,026,783
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR AR R AE 2R 18,009 19,196 21,470 23,433
Shareholder’s equity AR A 1,440,097 1,636,941 1,844,830 1,955,373
Major financial data TEHHEE
Current ratio (Times) BN L (%) 3.9 4.1 2.5 1.6
Quick ratio (Times) B (1) 3.3 3.5 2.2 1.2
Gearing — borrowings EIRL R — B3
to total assets BRI EE 2.1% 0.4% 0.3% 14.3%
Debtors turnover (Days) FEUEBR FURE (K& 40 37 35 45
Creditors turnover (Days) FERTBRFURE (K8 13 10 10 11
Inventories turnover (Days) FERE (RE) 32 29 24 33
Cash conversion (Days) IRE i (KR8 59 56 49 67
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFRBE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China Starch
Holdings Limited (the “Company”). | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2014, as part of plans to rebalance the economy, China’s annual GDP growth was
shaved to around 7.4%, which was considered as the weakest growth rate in decades.
The slowdown in China’s GDP growth reflected the Chinese Government’s intensified
policy efforts to place the economy on a more sustainable growth path and to create a
healthy environment for the long-term development of the economy. The Chinese
Government has pledged to transform its economic growth model to be less driven by
exports and investment but more by domestic consumption, on the other hand, they
have sought to avoid large-scale stimulating programs that would spur short-term
growth at the expense of long-term reform efforts. Since the Chinese Government
intended to keep its economic growth within a reasonable range and had weaken short-
term economic growth, we believe that a slower pace of growth would be an expected
consequence of economic reforms. Although a 7.4% growth seems to be very
impressive when compared with those sluggish western economies like the United
States (“US”) and Europe, the manufacturing sector has definitely gotten hit, and the
recovery of the US economy and European economy are going to continue to slow
down further.

OVERVIEW OF FINAL RESULTS

This year, we are fortunate to report that our business was generally resilient to
economic slowdown, with revenue of approximately RMB4,169,785,000 (2013:
RMBS3,422,033,000) and gross profit of RMB363,519,000 (2013: RMB300,352,000),
representing an increase of approximately 21.9% and 21.0% respectively over last year.
The Group however recorded a significant decrease in net profit after making a provision
of RMB86,437,000 against impairment losses of property, plant and equipment resulting
from the cessation of production lines in the old production plant. Without taking the
impact of the aforementioned impairment provision into consideration, net profit should
increase 5.6% from approximately RMB124,161,000 last year to RMB131,173,000 this
year.

BRI IER AR A A

BEMURRE
RAERKPEBHEZERAERABD(ARADES
(Ex)a(E=zg)) MARZARERENE
AE(GE [ AEENDBE-_Z—NF+-A=+—
RIEFEZ 2FEE -

E 3 0]

RZZ—NF  EREMFELBENES —
& NEERENFERETRENT.4%
FIKF - WRRRAH T FRIERFZI/HO—F -
BB A EAREIR RIE - R BEBUT IR N E
NBRFERSEBELAFEREENIE - REH
MREFRRMERRNRE - PRBAHESNER
REEIEREN B KBHORKESS - @
EMARBLEER  S—7m - PEBUTREE
AMERARBERIEEE - 8RR T RIBERIE &M
EEPRENBNONZRK - ERTFEBUSE RS
REERGHESENGEE  TEHBHRBANK
BEE - At AREREERBEHEREENS
EMEMER - BERDARR LS EBEMEMN
FSETERMAL - 7.4% MIBREUEE 2RE - BR
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REREHE

RAFE - REBERNBEEREMARE ZBACER
ERE . BERAHARE4,169,785,0007C (=&
— =4 AR#3422,033,0007T) X EF AR
363,519,0007C (—Z — =4 : AR ¥ 300,352,000
TL)  DRIREF EF4921.9%F121.0% © SAifn + B
REAEBENEERER TRUHEDE  BE
TR E R A 1B VR A R ¥ 86,437,000 T Ky 1
% AEBEGEFFEAERD o WA E EATIUR
BEEEOTE RAFEBEFHOARE
124,161,000 _EF15.6% % AR#131,173,0007T °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRHE

PROSPECTS

Three decades of impressive growth has turned China’s economy into the world’s most
powerful growth engine, in recent years, the world has been counting on China and
others emerging countries to uphold the global growth while the US and Europe have
stayed mired in heavy debts and joblessness. However, under the current macro
environment, economic growth rate is likely to slow down further in the short run, as
China will continue to focus on boosting the quality and efficiency of economic growth in
2015 and adhere to the aim of seeking progress while maintaining stability. In the year
ahead, we will remain alert to the economic uncertainty that continues to impact the
domestic spending patterns and manufacturing sectors, in the meantime, we will
concentrate on our core comnstarch business for going through another challenging year
by expanding our geographic coverage, product range, overhead control and customer
bases. We believe the innovation and dedication that we have will continue to strengthen
our position in the market, soften the negative impact in respect of any potential
downturn and also enable us to capture new opportunities under the current changing
and volatile environment.

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank you, our
shareholders, business partners, management and employees for their ongoing support

and trust towards to our Group during another challenging year.

Tian Qixiang
Chairman

Shouguang, the People’s Republic of China, 12 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CECEE PRk

GENERAL REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Review

The Chinese Government sets a gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth target at
around 7% for 2015, which is the lowest growth rate in two decades in China and
becomes a “new normal” under the economic reforms. A year ago, the GDP growth
target was set at 7.5% and turned out to be 7.4%. Under this “new normal” economic
situation, the growth is expected to be achieved with certain market correction policies
implemented by the Chinese Government in order to sustain a healthier economic
development in the future. As it is a sharp decline from last year’s GDP target, it is not
difficult to imagine that the adjustment period of Chinese economy would take a slower
pace than expected. The current slowdown accelerates industry consolidation, fades
out inefficient market players and offers more opportunities of the reallocation of
resources amongst the industry.

The Group is a witness of the consolidation of Chinese corn-refinery industry. During the
year under review, many market players have quitted the industry due to several
negative impacts caused by the economic recession, such as losing competitiveness,
continuous operating losses and serious financial difficulties. As a result, only resilient
market players can survive in this long haul economic recession.

This year is full of challenges. As the Group’s business is mainly carried out in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the profitability of the Group was inevitably
affected by the economic slowdown. With the effort of our management team, the
Group’s revenue had benefited from the increase in sales volume, but the profitability
had decreased to a lower rate as compared with that in last year.

During the year under review, revenue recorded a remarkable growth of 21.9% to
approximately RMB4,169,785,000 (2013: RMB3,422,033,000). Gross profit margin of
the Group decreased marginally from 8.8 percentage point to 8.7 percentage point. An
impairment provision of approximately RMB86,437,000 was provided for the idle
production facilities and buildings as a result of cessation of production lines in the old
production plant, details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Relocation of
production site in Shouguang” on page 8. Therefore, profit for the year decreased
significantly from approximately RMB124,161,000 to RMB66,345,000. Basic earnings
per share of the Company was RMB0.0105 per share based on the weighted average
number of 5,994,109,000 ordinary shares (2013: RMB0.0206 per share based on the
weighted average number of 5,941,049,000 ordinary shares).

BRI IER AR A A

BER AR

=l

FRBNA-T —AFIEEAN4EELE(GDP))
MBERBZOART%  HPBE =+ FURKERE
RE - WAKARKEHERETH [FFRE] - —Fa8
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REBEFE WABEERII%ENARE
4,169,785,0007T( = Z— =14 : AR#3,422,033,000
TT) o NEBEEMKRHSSMEE D BHEMR NEEST
BEHE - ARELERENEEREILEE B
HRHEBLEERBREFHEREBEOARE
86,437,0007C * FIEHIINESE [IRBIANFZ K
WEERE] — K- Alt - AFEFBHOARE
124,161,000 7T A 18 T P& &= A R # 66,345,000 7T °
1R 5 D4 S 15 % $505,994,109,000 A% & 3@ B =T &
RARHEBRERANSETRARKE0.01057T(=
T—=4F : IRIR N T AR £5,941,049,000 A &
mRETERERARE0.02067T) ©

—B-mEER 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFWRE S

LATEST DEVELOPMENT AND OUTLOOK

To become one of the leading cornstarch manufacturers in the PRC, we are committed
to expand our businesses by using cornstarch as raw material and to produce our
products at competitive prices. During the year under review, we have completed the
relocation (the “Relocation”) of the production plants and facilities (the “Old Plant”)
located in Shouguang to the new production site (the “New Plant”) as granted by the
Municipal Government of Shouguang (the “Shouguang Government”). In addition, we
have also substantially completed the upgrade of cornstarch production facilities and
cost improvement project in Linging plant.

Relocation of production site in Shouguang

As at the date of this report, the New Plant has an annual cornstarch, lysine and
modified starch production capacities of approximately 450,000 tonnes, 55,000 tonnes
and 100,000 tonnes respectively, which are the same as the production capacities of
the Old Plant. The production facilities located in the Old Plant will be demolished or
relocated to other production site depending on their conditions and our future
development plan from time to time.

The land on which the OlId Plant is located will be resumed by the Shouguang
Government with a subsidy to be provided by the latter to the Group as a result of or in
connection with the Relocation. The amount of subsidy is to be principally determined
by the final sale price of the land at its listing-for-sale by the Shouguang Land Reserve
Centre, a third party independent of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the management does not have and has not committed to

any plan to sell any asset located in the Old Plant (other than those arising from the
ordinary course of business).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWRE S

Upgrade of production facilities in Linging

The Group has substantially completed the upgrade of the cornstarch production
facilities in the Linging plant by the end of 2014. The annual cornstarch production
capacity has increased from 400,000 to 600,000 tonnes. It is expected that the benefit
of the production facilities upgrade in the Linging plant will be crystallised in 2015.

Besides, the Group has completed certain improvement on reducing production
overheads of starch-based sweetener. It is expected the unit cost of starch-based
sweetener would be reduced in future if other costs remain unchanged.

BUSINESS ANALYSIS

The following chart shows the contribution of each of our business segments to the
Group’s revenue in the past two years:

}—1 .3%

HRURBRENEERE

REBER T —NFEAABEREBERE EXK
MBI EERENARIE - EXBRPOFEELE
400,000 lf 3% % 600,000 18 © 78 HAFR 5 M= £ E %
MEF RS R T RN =T — A FE RS -

Btz b - AEEE TR AR ERMDIEN EEKA
TR THOE o A AR N - FHERYD
EH) B LR AR RIAARIRAE P T -

EBOM

TEBERARBEERD PEBEMFHAREE Y
AHIERL

Cornstarch and ancillary corn-refined products
TR R FRRINLEIESR

Lysine and related products
BREREBRER

Starch-based sweetener

IDHE

Modified starch

Electricity and steam

BAREA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFWRE S

Cornstarch and ancillary corn-refined products

Revenue A
Gross profit EF
Gross profit margin ES[Ed

FERBERERRNIEER

2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=F
RMB’000 R1\Y/|=X0/0[0)
AR¥T T AR¥ETT
2,971,862 2,395,323
252,848 149,585
8.5% 6.2%

Cornstarch and ancillary comn-refined products include cornstarch (a major component
of corn kernel), corn gluten meal, corn fibre, corn germ and corn slurry. The application
of cornstarch is widely spread in different industries. Corn gluten meal and corn fibre can
be produced as animal feeds.

Revenue of this business segment increased substantially by 24.1% to approximately
RMB2,971,862,000 (2013: RMB2,395,323,000). Sales volume of cornstarch increased
by 23.2% to approximately 773,079 tonnes (2013: 627,603 tonnes). The increase in
sales volume was mainly attributable to an increase in sales orders from customers
during the year under review. The Group had relocated the production facilities located
in the Old Plant to the New Plant in July 2014.

Gross profit margin of this business segment increased from 6.2% in 2013 to 8.5% in
2014. The increase in gross profit margin was due to (i) an increase in average selling
price of cornstarch, and (i) the reduction of production costs resulted from the use of
modern production facilities and automatic machineries in the New Plant.

RMB/Tonne
AR,/ W
3,000 —
2,900 —
2,800
2,700
2,600
2,500
2,400
2,300
2,200 —

2,100 —

FRBD R EARRINTEIERBREERBH (EXK
RO EERD) EREAH - FARER - TKE
FRERGE e FABMEZEBBRZETE - £X
EAY R EAREE A R E DR -

EBS BB AKBIEMN241%EHARE
2,971,862,0007t( = Z—=4 : AR¥2,395,323,000
TL) o EARBMDEHE B IN28.2% £ 41773,079 1
(ZZT—=4% :627,603H8) - HEIEMNEBZHMNIE
EEFEREEFHHEEFTEEM  AREERZ
T—NEF+ A ERE N EEREREEFRE

WEBDPHNENRH -_E—=ZF62% LHZE—
T—UF8.5% ° BFIR LA AR () EARBIDHF
HEELA: ROHEFBREREZEABRICEE
B RS BB R BB AR T E o

2014 average selling price
—E-MFETYEE

2013 average selling price
—E-CETLER

2,000 L L L
Q1 Q2 Q3

Q4
EES

Cornstarch selling price movement (net of value-added tax)

FRBEBES (NBIBED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Lysine and related products

Revenue LON
Gross profit ES|
Gross profit margin ERE

BEMREBER
2014
—z2-mE =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARMET 5
671,206 516,418
43,287 85,770
6.4% 16.6%

The products of this business segment include lysine, fertilisers and other deep-
processing products. Revenue of this segment increased substantially by 30.0% to
approximately RMB671,206,000 (2013: RMB516,418,000). The sales performance was
disappointing in the first half of 2014 due to the overcapacity of lysine and the depressed
animal feed market leading to significant decrease in the selling prices of lysine products.
Some of the market players had even suspended their operations during the slump
which subsequently led to a decrease in supply in the market. Owing to this, the average
selling price of lysine started to pick up from the downward trend since mid-2014.

The Group recorded a substantial growth in lysine products from 71,182 tonnes to
112,351 tonnes. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase in sales orders
from customers during the year under review, in line with the continuous exploration of
the overseas markets.

RMB/Tonne
AR,/
10,000 —
9,000 —
2013
—ET-=F
8,000 —

7,000

6,000

R BHERBERALE - EHREAMRNT
B o th D B HIUR A K IR 8 i1 30.0% =4I AR
671,206,0007T (=T — =% : AK¥516,418,000
7)) - MR EREAERBRIA LB WAL TSN
SEYWAREREERNRE K —T—WF ¥
FOHERRARMIPE - RGBTSRV - 20
DATBEZEEEE AMERMSHEEZR
Lo ARRE - BRARNTFHEER T —NF
TFBEBSRETE -

RNEBENBIBEREESRSARIEE - H71,182
WEEFZE112,351HF o EATIEZARBEE TEH
WIS EEBEFERASFNEETEAM
B e

2014
—z-mx

2013 average selling price
SE-SEFHEE

2014 average selling price

—B-MEPYEM
5,000 L L L
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
E—F E=F B=F EmzE
Lysine selling price movement (net of value-added tax)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Starch-based sweetener

Revenue A
Gross profit EF
Gross profit margin ES[Ed

B HE
2014 2013
—T-—OF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
253,025 217,336
21,194 7,691
8.4% 3.5%

Starch-based sweetener consists of various liquid and crystallised sweeteners. These
products are mainly used in food and beverage industries, which can provide a synergy
effect through our existing distribution network and extend the value chain of the Group.
This is a good business development because we can diversify our high value products
by using cornstarch as raw material. Revenue increased by 16.4% to approximately
RMB253,025,000 (2013: RMB217,336,000). Gross profit margin set a new record of
8.4% (2013: 3.5%) in this business segment’s trading history. A diversified clientele and
a strong distribution network have been established by our Linging production plant over
years.

Modified starch

Revenue A
Gross profit EF
Gross profit margin ES[pd

BOREERZERELERHKE - ZEFERTE
ANEMEAHTE  BERMREAEND HBE
ELBRBUE - WEEREEAEERE - EBRB
—HEENEGER - BRMATNAEKBEHIER
MEEES TN SEEER - WA ETT16.4% =
B ANREE253,025000( =T —=4: AR¥
217,336,000 )  EME B8A%( T — =% :
35%) ' BIHUEB D BRIELEH D o BRIFHK
FEEMNTFET —[lZ TN E PR LBAND

2014

—E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
218,123 235,269
43,442 46,269
19.9% 19.7%

Revenue for the year under review was approximately RMB218,123,000 (2013:
RMB235,269,000). The production facilities of modified starch in the Old Plant had
ceased since July 2014 because of the Relocation. The construction of the production
facilities in the New Plant was completed in late September 2014. By the end of 2014,
the production of modified starch in the New Plant had resumed at its normal capacity.

12

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Ol B8 F ) A K9 AR 218,123,000 T (=&
—=% : AR¥235269,0007T) - HREITIHRE -
ERENZEBRNEEREE —T-OFLAED
BILEE - FHELEERENVERTIRER-F
—OFNARTK - R_Z-NOFFE - HHFELE
EZEBMERDIELER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Electricity and steam

Revenue LON
Gross profit ES|
Gross profit margin ERE

BAREN
2014
—=-nF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFT
55,569 57,687
2,748 11,037
4.9% 19.1%

Revenue of electricity and steam decreased by 3.7% to approximately RMB55,569,000
(2013: RMB57,687,000). As a result of the Relocation, the production and sale of
electricity and steam had ceased since July and December 2014 respectively. Gross
profit decreased significantly because the fixed production overheads of this business
segment were still incurring subsequent to the cessation.

Cost of sales

The major cost components of cost of sales are corn kernel, coal and utilities expenses.
Costs of sales increased in line with revenue by 21.9% to approximately
RMB3,806,266,000 (2013: RMB3,121,681,000). The increase in cost of sales was
mainly attributable to an increase in sales volume during the year under review. The
average corn kernel price in 2014 was approximately RMB2,051/tonne (2013:
RMB2,028/tonne). Instead of entering into any forward contract to hedge the price
fluctuation of corn kernel, the Group makes bulk purchases from the spot market when
the management considers the price of corn kernel is low. Details of risk of acquisition of
corn kernel and relationship with our suppliers are set out in the Environmental and
Sustainability Report contained in this Annual Report.

Coal was mainly used for generating electricity and steam for internal usage in the past
two years. Subsequent to the completion of Relocation, we have stopped purchasing
coal to generate electricity and steam in the Old Plant. Our New Plant has been
consuming electricity and steam from a nearby power plant, which is a third party
independent of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFWRE S

DIVIDENDS

In view of the global and mainland China’s economy uncertainty as well as the increasing
cornstarch and lysine market volatility, the Board adopts a conservative approach in the
determination of interim and final dividend of the Company. The Board will consider the
availability of distributable profits, earnings, financial positions, funding requirement,
potential investment opportunity and other relevant factors at the time of considering the
payment of any dividend.

A final dividend of HKO0.69 cents per share has been recommended by the Board for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 2,241 (2013: 2,284) full time staff. Total staff
costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group were approximately
RMB130,225,000 (2013: RMB119,616,000). Human resources are the Group’s valuable
assets. Our human resources department is responsible for providing on-the-job
trainings to our staff in order to enhance their skills and capabilities. The Group will also
outsource our staff training programmes to external professional training services
providers from time to time. The remuneration policy of the Group is formulated based
on the Group’s operating results, individual performance, working experience and
responsibility, merit, qualifications and competence of individual employees and
comparable market statistics and is reviewed regularly. The remuneration policy is
applicable to both employees and the Directors. The Company has also adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) with a primary purpose of motivating
our employees and other eligible persons entitled under the Share Option Scheme to
optimise their contributions to the Group and to reward them for their contribution to the
Group. In addition, a remuneration committee is delegated by the Board to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation
payable to the Directors and senior management.

As at 31 December 2014, no share options had been granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial management and treasury policy

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management and investment on
uncommitted funds. Any unused fund is intended to place on short term/fixed deposits
with authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong and/or the PRC.

Foreign currency exposure

The Directors do not consider the exposure to foreign exchange risk is significant to the
Group’s operation as the Group operated mainly in the PRC and most of the Group’s
transactions, assets and liabilities were denominated in Renminbi. Foreign currencies
were however received from export sales. Such proceeds were subject to foreign
exchange risk before converting into Renminbi. The foreign currencies received from
export sales were converted into Renminbi upon receipt from overseas customers. The
Group manages foreign exchange risk by monitoring the exchange rates closely instead
of entering into any foreign exchange hedging arrangement.

Finance expenses

As a result of an increase in average borrowings during the year under review, finance
expenses increased significantly from approximately RMB7,881,000 to RMB22,196,000.
Therefore, the interest cover (which equals profit before income tax and interest divided
by the sum of interest charges) was approximately 5 times (2013: 22 times).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWRE S

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Directors are of the opinion that the working capital available to the Group is
sufficient for its present requirements. As at 31 December 2014, the borrowings were
approximately RMB284 million (2013: RMB431 million) and carried interest at fixed rates.

The portfolio of borrowings and key financial ratios are summarised as follows:

Currency of borrowings
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFWRE S

Borrowings (RMB’000)

Debtors turnover (days)

Creditors turnover (days)

Inventories turnover (days)

Current ratio

Quick ratio

Gearing ratio — borrowings to total assets

fER(ARETT)

e YRR IR e (K20
FEfTERIAE (K20
FHAE (RH)

ML

RELL

BRLEE — EFRABEE

2014
—B-mF

284,432 430,689

35 45

13 11

32 33

1.6 1.6

1.3 1.2

10.0% 14.3%

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2014, bills payables were secured by bank acceptance bills and
bank deposits in the amounts of RMB4,692,000 and RMB6,000,000 respectively. As at
31 December 20183, bills payables were secured by bank acceptance bills in the amount
of RMB9,000,000. The Group did not pledge any leasehold land and building to secure

banking facilities as at 31 December 2014.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EFRSREEARGEN

Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Qixiang, aged 51, is the chairman of the Board principally responsible for the
Group’s strategic positioning. He is also responsible for formulating the Group’s
business development objectives and ensuring that such objectives are implemented by
the Board accordingly. Mr. Tian was the chairman of the board of directors of Shandong
Shouguang Juneng Golden Corn Development Co., Ltd. (“Golden Corn”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, during the period from July 2003 (when he
first joined the Group) to October 2005. He was re-appointed as a director of Golden
Corn in December 2005 and was the chairman of the board of Golden Corn from
August 2006 to July 2012. Mr. Tian has been working for Electricity Supply Company of
Shouguang City (“Shouguang Electricity Supply Company”) since 1984. He was
appointed as the deputy manager of Shouguang Electricity Supply Company in October
1985, and was further appointed as its deputy party secretary in May 1990. Mr. Tian
had been the manager and party member of Shouguang Electricity Supply Company
since March 2000. He resigned from all his positions in Shouguang Electricity Supply
Company on 3 December 2014. Mr. Tian possesses substantial experience in corporate
management.

Mr. Tian completed his study of Electricity and Water Irrigation from Water and Electricity
Machinery School in 1981 and graduated from The Shandong Province Party
Committee School of the People’s Republic of China with a diploma in Economics
Management in 1996. Mr. Tian obtained the qualification as a senior economist in
December 2002.

Mr. Tian is beneficially interested in approximately 54.58% of the issued share capital of
Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry Boom”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and is also a director of Merry Boom.

Mr. Gao Shijun, aged 47, is the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Gao is
principally responsible for overseeing the Group’s operations and business
management. Mr. Gao joined Golden Corn in August 1998, and was later appointed as
the deputy manager of Golden Corn in January 2000. Mr. Gao has been a director of
Golden Corn since July 2003 and its general manager since May 2005. Mr. Gao is also
a director of Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio Limited (“Deneng Golden Corn”) and
Shouguang Golden Far East Modified Starch Co., Ltd.

Mr. Gao obtained an undergraduate degree in Physics in 1989 and a Master of Business
Administration degree in 2012 from Shandong University. He was also awarded the
qualification of senior engineer in 2010. Mr. Gao was appointed as one of the vice-
presidents of China Starch Industry Association for a term from November 2011 to
November 2015.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EFEREREEARBARN

Mr. Liu Xianggang, aged 46, joined Golden Corn as a factory supervisor in 1998 and
has been a director of Golden Corn since October 2005. Mr. Liu has been as a director
of Deneng Golden Corn since March 2008 and was the general manager from March
2008 to December 2012. He is responsible for the Group’s production technology
developments and cornstarch production.

Mr. Liu graduated from Shandong Industrial University (subsequently amalgamated into
Shandong University in 2000) in 1990 with an undergraduate degree in Industrial
Management, and obtained a postgraduate diploma in Industrial Economics from the
Economics School of Shandong University in 2003. Mr. Liu also obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from Shandong University in 2012. Mr. Liu obtained the
qualification as senior engineer in 2002. Mr. Liu is the deputy supervisor of the
Cornstarch Professionals Committee of China Starch Industry Association.

Mr. Yu Yingquan, aged 46, is principally responsible for the overall management in
investment and corporate finance of the Group. Mr. Yu first joined the Group as a
director of Golden Corn during the period from July 2003 to October 2005, and was re-
appointed as director in March 2007.

Mr. Yu graduated from Shandong Hydro Institute in 1990 with a diploma in Hydro
Economic and Financial Management, and obtained a diploma in Finance Management
from Shandong Economics Management Institute in 1998. Mr. Yu obtained the
Certificate of Accounting Professional of the People’s Republic of China issued by
Finance Bureau of Shouguang City in 1997.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Zhijun, aged 49, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 September 2013. Mr. Chen is a professor and the Vice-Dean of the School
of Management of Shandong University. Mr. Chen obtained a doctoral degree in
Business Management from Nankai University in 2006. He had been the Chief Academic
Consultant (Group’s Management) of China Centre for Enterprise Group Research at
Central South University since June 2011 for a term of three years. Mr. Chen is a part-
time professor of Anhui University of Finance & Economics and also serves as a
distinguished lecturer for the Advanced Strategy Management Programme for
Outstanding Teachers organised by the National Higher Education Institutions Teacher
Online Training Center under the Ministry of Education of the People’s Republic of
China.

Mr. Chen was appointed as an independent director of Shandong Geo-mineral Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Geo-mineral”) on 24 January 2013. Mr. Chen was also an independent
director of Huayi Compressor Co., Ltd. (“Huayi”) for the period from May 2011 to March
2012. The shares of Shandong Geo-mineral and Huayi are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EFREREEARBAN

Mr. Sun Mingdao, aged 66, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 September 2013. Mr. Sun was appointed as the chief secretary of China
Starch Industry Association in November 2011 for a term of four years. Mr. Sun had
been a deputy director of the research centre and a vice general manager of Wuhan
Huali Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2007.

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, aged 49, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 September 2007. Mr. Yue is also an executive director, the
company secretary and the compliance officer of Roma Group Limited (“Roma”). He is
also an independent non-executive director of Major Holdings Limited (“Major”). During
the period from 4 July 2014 to 18 November 2014, Mr. Yue was appointed as an
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
(“Legend Strategy”). Roma, Major and Legend Strategy are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Yue is a certified public accountant with solid
experience in accounting, auditing and corporate finance. Mr. Yue is also a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Colorado State Society of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also holding a specialist certificate and a practicing
certificate in corporate finance of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Senior Management
All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects of the business and

operation of the Group. These executive Directors are regarded as the members of the
senior management team of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company’s subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of comnstarch, lysine, starch-based
sweetener, modified starch, and ancillary corn-based and corn-refined products and
sales of electricity and steam. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 16 provides a
comprehensive review of the operations, financial performance, and prospects of the
Group during the year under review.

The Environmental and Sustainability Report set out on pages 28 to 38 provides a
review on the Group’s major key performance indicators, environmental policies, and
risks and uncertainties.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 49.

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK0.69 cents
per share. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company in the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company to be held on 20 May
2015, the final dividend is expected to be paid in June 2015 in cash.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 53.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of movements of the Group’s non-current assets (including property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments) during the year are set out in notes 16 and 17
to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEREE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 2. The summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB191,811,000. The amount of distributable
reserves included the Company’s share premium of approximately RMB170,091,000,
which may be distributed provided that the Company will remain solvent after the
distribution of dividend. Movements in the reserves of the Company are set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s turnover and purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases of the Group.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman)

Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Xianggang

Mr. Yu Yingquan

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Zhijun

Mr. Sun Mingdao

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken

By virtue of Article 108(A) of the Articles, Mr. Gao Shijun, Mr. Yu Yingquan and Mr. Yue
Kwai Wa, Ken will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and as at the date of this report still considers all of them
to be independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM
has entered into any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the
Group during the year under review are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

At no time during the year had the Group and the Directors entered into any contract of
significance and there was also no contract of significance, to which the Group was a
party, in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are provided under note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
them constitutes a connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND EERFTETHAERARA R E B
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR EZERG - HERORESFTNERR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED RE

CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief R-ZT—W&E+_—_A=+—H0 #ERARAANFE

executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the  {THABRAAR S EEMEBEE(EERES
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the — SAfIE 571 Z&E 5 REISIEH ([ E5 REEEH )
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)  EXVE8) K& (p ~ BEARMND REST - BEIREE
as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or 35 [ BAt5 15£15] 55 352 (§ BB N AR RIIF BN E 50
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model — fll RsiiR1E 4R BIFFE M) F 3T AB HETHE
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)  #3 SEiEE<r Al ([12%<FA| ) B RITHE AR T

contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows: RESZ TR R JOAB AT
The Company/ Capacity/ Number and class of Percentage
Name of Director associated corporation nature of interest securities held (note 1) of shareholding
ExpnA AATHEEE B EEitE RFERSHE RER (1) EREMOEAL
Mr. Tian Qixiang The Company Interest in a controlled 3,705,385,194 ordinary shares 61.79%
BEELE VNG| corporation of HK$0.10 each (L) (note 2)
RyEHhEERER 3,705,385,194 f&
HREEO.10HETH
AL (MEE2)
Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 131 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 54.58%
REEEERRA EnBBA 131 IREREE1 ZTHEER L
Mr. Gao Shijun Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 60 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 25.00%
EttrE A REEEBRAR ExBBA 60X FIREE 1 2T mAR (L)
Mr. Yu Yingquan Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share of US$1 each (L) 0.42%
FTEe%E REEEERAR EanBBA 1REREE1ETHEBRD
Notes: LI

(1) The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the Company or the (1) FE (L] RREBFERARA TG BHEEEERD
relevant associated corporation. i .

) These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group Limited is owned @ ERMBREEEERARRNE - HEE IEBE

as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Tian is deemed to be interested in all AR BAEE R SRR L 54.58% e o RIEE
the shares held by Merry Boom Group Limited under the SFO. REIEHRA - BEEWRAREREBER AR
BHFERDRIEARER

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors and the chief ~ B EXFFREEIN RZT—WNF+ A =+—
executive of the Company nor their respective associates had any interest or short H » BERARFTZTHAEHKREZENHE
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its ~ ABIERA R &) sk M EEEE (F&REH K&
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required ~ BRE &I XVED) AR D - BB REHF - %
to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO AR #E & H MG & FI5E 352 (RSN AR ATF

or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model ~ EME LM AR BEREEFRIZARTHEARNRE R
Code. A2 PRV (] e s SR B
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 5
September 2007. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

24

The primary purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate our employees
and other eligible persons entitled under the Share Option Scheme to optimise
their contributions to the Group and to reward them for their contribution to the
Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are (a) any employee (whether
full-time or part-time including any executive director but excluding any non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which any member of the Group holds an equity interest; (b) any non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of goods
or services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (h) any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance
or other business arrangement to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of
the Company in issue from time to time. The total number of the Shares which
may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all options (excluding, for this
purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the date on which
the Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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4. The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon the
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being (“Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of such further grant must be separately approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such grantee and his
associates abstaining from voting.

5. Any grant of options under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates
must be approved by independent non-executive directors of the Company
(excluding independent non-executive director of the Company who or whose
associates is the proposed grantee of the options). In addition, any grant of
options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company or any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
Shares in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval of the Company in a
general meeting.

6. The exercise period of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
is determined by the directors of the Company, which period may commence
from the date of the offer for the grant of options is made, but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of the offer for the grant of the option
or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier, subject to the
provisions for early termination as stated in the Share Option Scheme.

7. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 21
days from the date of the offer for the grant with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 from the grantee.

8. The exercise price of the share option is determined by the Board but shall not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Shares.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective till 4 September 2017.

As at 31 December 2014, no share options had been granted under the Share Option
Scheme of the Company.
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INTERESTS OF THE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, so far as is known to the Directors, the following persons,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, have an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder
BRREB

Merry Boom Group Limited
1REEBEBRAT

Victory Investment China Group
Limited (“VICGL")

Capacity/nature
of interest
B, REMtE

Beneficial owner
ERAA

Beneficial owner

BEmERA

Person having a security interest
BERERRZNHAL

Wang Ruiyun Interest in a controlled
TixE corporation (VICGL)
REHDEE R
(VICGL)
Notes:

)

The letter “L” denotes the long position in the shares of the Company.

These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group Limited is owned
as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang, an executive Director and Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Tian is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Merry Boom Group
Limited under the SFO as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures of the
Company or its Associated Corporations” above.

In accordance with the corporate and individual substantial shareholder notices of VICGL and
Wang Ruiyun filed on 17 August 2010, they are interested in 145,000,000 underlying shares
through the holding of certain unlisted cash-settled equity derivatives.

In accordance with the corporate substantial shareholder notice of VICGL filed on 17 August
2010, VICGL holds a long position in 99,000,000 shares jointly with another corporate
shareholder named “Goldstone Fund Ltd”.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,995,892,043 issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests or short positions are set out in the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures of the Company or its Associated
Corporations” above, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company were not
aware of any person who had an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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B3, AR BA (FiaE1)

FERRRADARMDREBEREL P
RS

WZZE—NE+-A=+—H BERMRM &BAE
NERIBEES MG IGDIE 36 IR ARAFTEN
BRMprmns A TAL(EEFLARAEETHR
AB BN AR B B Sl B A 0 o B A i ok

W

Percentage of
issued share capital
(note 5)
HEBRTREABDLL
(Pff=ES5)

3,705,385,194 (L) 61.79% (note 2)

(BfzE2)
292,000,000 (L) 6.52% (note 3, 4)
(Bf3E3 ~ 4)

99,000,000 (L)

391,000,000 (L) 6.52% (note 3)
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as the Share Option Scheme of the Company disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float of
not less than 25% of the Company’s total issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance. A detailed
Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 39 to 46 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Tian Qixiang

Chairman

Shouguang, The People’s Republic of China

12 March 2015
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BRERUTHERRERS

GROUP STRATEGY

Business objective

Cornstarch is one of the most versatile, renewable and easily workable resources which
also has a wide range of application in various industries. From the clothing we wear to
the food and beverage served in the restaurant, cornstarch becomes one of the most
commonly used components of tens of thousands of manufactured products nowadays.
Thus, the demand of our products, which mainly consist of cornstarch, lysine, modified
starch and starch-based sweeteners, are less exposed to the adverse effects of the
economic down cycle. The slowdown in the Chinese economic activities is expected to
continue, which bring a short term risk on the profitability of our business. The Group’s
response to this risk is to make determined efforts on cost control and cash flow
management; in the meantime we have also implemented appropriate measures to
lower the risk of losing competitiveness and flexibility in the market. In addition, the
Group is also committed to deploying more research and development resources in the
aspect of production technology and new products. In the long run, we maintain a
positive view in our business because of the following reasons:

1. The cornstarch consumption per capita in China is far less than the developed
countries in the world which represents a sparking prospect in future.

2. The application of cornstarch is a blue ocean because the potential application of
cornstarch is still being developed by scientists.

3. We are located in a major corn-belt and are close to customers.

4. Cornstarch has low substitutability and are non-reusable.
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RERUGHEERES

With our strong platform, we are positioned to capture the benefits of an increasing
market share and well prepared for further sustainable growth. Even though we are
facing the current tough global environment, our objective remains unchanged, which is
to be in a leading position in the corn-refinery industry in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). To achieve this goal, the Directors and its executive management teams are
engaged in expanding our production capacity of cornstarch and lysine products,
expanding our product pipeline, expanding our marketing force and our market
coverage, and enhancing our research and development capability.

AN\ GOAL METHODS
&

BHRERMBANTE - HASEFERS - EEDS
NEE LT RANGER - WERERE — LA
BRELFEE - EARMRFMEYN2IRIT+
DEIE - BRMKATEARKMBE ([HE]) £XK
RINTEEEEN BRI ARAMSE - HEZEH
AR BEFRERTEREBRC 2 NIRRT EREBN
MEARERMNER MREMRE BRMHH
BENERMERTSEEER - WIRTATNEFAEES -

E OUTCOME
TR

B#& &
Become a market leader in Cost control
the corn-refinery
industry in China Strengthen the

balance sheet

AT B E KRN T M

HREE Research and development
A2
hnsg & = 8 &R
ot K E

Creat value to
our shareholders

RIERENEEE
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RERUSHERRES

Activities taken against strategy

In 2014, the Group had taken the following activities towards implementing the Group’s

strategy and creating value to our shareholders.

What we did in 2014?

BERTEEER
R-F—NF  AEECDERRTITSHEEREE
EVEREE - R REBEEE -

What we plan to do in 2015?

R-B—mEWERT

REZ-HFBETHTD

Cost control v Used automatic machineries extensively v Increase the overall product output ratio by
in the new production site in Shouguang 0.27 percentage point
v Increased the overall product output v Further reduce the energy consumption
ratio (note) by 0.67 percentage point ratio by about 7% for lysine products
v Reduced the energy consumption ratio
by about 22% for lysine products
RAEE v/ ESHFEETMARSERE IS v HEBELXIES027TEE DS
v/ HERELXR (MRS 067EAESH v/ HERBRELE MR RUBFEERE — B EA7%
v/ HRE EUBA 2 O O BB TRB FE R PR K 40 22%
Strengthen the balance sheet v Monitored debt level v Reduce the gearing ratio
v Reduced cash conversion days v Maintain the cash conversion days within
by 13 days 60 days
hnBEEAB/RR v/ ELERET KT v/ FREAEIR &
v/ IR S EIRREUR D 13K v/ HE 3R & BRI R B 512 60 KA
Research and development Entered into a research and Complete the pilot-scale production line
development agreement with a research and obtain pilot experiment results from
centre managed by Chinese Academy the New Project
of Sciences for the development and
marketization of a new product
(the “New Project”)
v Set up a pilot-scale production line for
the New Project
95 & BA 3 v/ mh R ERAERENPRPOIL—E TRHRIEEEGURGHIELE OABRER
R - AR RIEERER
(T#rEg )
v/ RFTEE R —GRARIEEESR
Note: B EE -

Product output ratio is calculated by tonnes of physical products produced to the tonnes of corn

kernels used for a period of time.
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RERUGHEERES

MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS TO THE GROUP

The Group’s sustainability is highly depended on the relationship with it stakeholders.
Besides creating value to our shareholders of the Company, we also create value to our
stakeholders beyond monetary terms. We are committed to balancing financial
performance with how we do business, how we treat our people, how we live the values
in our business relationships and how we care for the community and environment
which we rely on. The following diagram shows the Group’s major stakeholder groups
which can participate in our decision-making process and influence our business
outcomes.

EMPLOYEES
BT

9,

Employees

We recognise that the health and safety of our people come first as they are key to our
long-term success. This is core to us and to every aspect of our business. We believe
the achievement of positive workplace relations is mutually beneficial to the Group and
our employees as workplace efficiency is achieved when labour relationships allow for a
culture of continuous improvement and acceptance of change. To understand, manage
and, where possible, minimise occupational injuries or illnesses in our business, we have
appropriate controls in place and provide our people with appropriate training. On-the-
job trainings related to individual development are also provided to our people to
enhance skills and capabilities. Meanwhile, we encourage communication at all levels.
Apart from regular meetings with the representative of the Group’s labour union, we also
obtain opinions from and provide feedbacks within our workgroups in order to ensure
continual improvement aimed at the work environment and other staff-related matters.
In April 2014, we have entered into a continuous development programme agreement
with Shandong University for providing internal courses to our managerial staff. This
programme consists of different courses in business administration and management.
The programme’s tuition fee is borne by the Group. The total learning hours of this
programme are 368 hours and are expected to be completed in one year.
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Suppliers

We have developed trust with our suppliers. We, as a leading cornstarch manufacturer,
play an important role in the procurement of corn kernel in Shouguang and Linging
districts, which are located in Shandong province. Our suppliers mainly consist of
farmers, cooperatives, agents and traders. We provide our corn kernel offer price to our
suppliers by using mobile technology. While our procurement is carried out on 24/7
basis, we propose corn kernel offer prices to our suppliers through mobile technology to
increase efficiency. We believe that our suppliers will deliver the best corn kernel to us at
their first priority because our offer prices are transparent and we show commitment to
purchase at our initial offer prices. We also adopt a tender policy and procedure for
choosing service providers and subcontractors in a fair and transparent manner.

Customers

Product safety is a great issue as we produce raw materials for our customers. Our
quality assurance programme ensures that our product standards can be identified
precisely in accordance with the Chinese national standards issued by The
Standardization Administration of the PRC. In addition, we also work closely with our
customers to develop our order book and provide the required products at the right
time.

In December 2014, Dalian Commodity Exchange has introduced a new futures product,
namely Cornstarch Futures, to the market. Our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Shandong Shouguang Golden Corn Development Co., Ltd is one of the six designated
clearing warehouses as at the date of the establishment of the cornstarch futures
market. In addition, we also sell our cornstarch by entering into cornstarch futures
contracts. The benefits of using futures contracts by the Group are as follows:

(i) Our transportation cost can be reduced because our products are settled by
delivery in our warehouse.

(i) Cornstarch price movement becomes more manageable.
(iii) We can have a more precise planning on procurement and production.
(iv)  We can develop a new distribution network outside the spot market.

Governments

One of our major stakeholders is the government agencies. With the support of the
Municipal Government of Shouguang (the “Shouguang Government”), we have relocated
our existing production plants and facilities to a new production site as granted by the
Shouguang Government at the end of 2014. In addition, subsidy is also expected to be
granted to the Group by the Shouguang Government as a result of or in connection with
the relocation. Besides that, we have worked closely with other government bureaus,
such as Environmental Protection Bureau and Tax Bureau. Our continuous
commitments and supports to the government agencies allow them to provide adequate
public services to the communities.

Shareholders

In 2014, we launched some investor relation meetings to answer their enquiries and
share our view on the industry. We also hosted the 2014 annual general meeting in
Hong Kong to allow the local shareholders to provide their feedback and comments on
the development of the business.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FEXRBER

TEXBRFECRMAEMBRLEERR - Hik
PREADRSRNEREE -

Our key performance indicators (“KPI”) enable us to measure our financial and
operational performance that is critical to our success in the industry.

Indicator

BE

Relevance to strategy

Workplace safety
THRE

Workplace safety is the first priority in
all of our production sites. It is zero
tolerance to accident during
production.

Development and training
MR R

We are committed to upholding a
work-safe culture. The provision of
suitable training to our employees can
protect them from work and increase
production efficiency.

Environmental protection
RERE

We are a responsible user of natural
resources. We are committed to
meeting the environmental standards,
rules and regulations.

BRI ITERZ2RBMAEEERERE HMARHSBHRETENE - #EE KMARBEEINABARERERE - &
ZM—R - RMEEERHBEEIMNG  RESESITRERSNIHERZS - MBOETSERREE R8I K& -
[Z]ARREE - W AR A E B o
Performance Foan e Please refer to the paragraph heading
®E 5 i “Use of Resources” on page 37 for
details.
y HERSHETE[ERER] —& -
S 2 e
The Group provides continuous Our human resources department is
commitment on improving work safety.  responsible for providing trainings to
our staff the result of which is a
component of their performance
review.
AEETHBORALERZS - ANERBFIBER B TREEI - 15
RERTZETREN—IE o
Definition The average working days lost per The average number of training hours
injury. per employee is calculated as the total
internal training hours to different
employee categories.
Bs BRXGERBRNTHIERE - BREENHTORINSEIRABEE

BB ATE R B ERGE -

Related stakeholders
HEERE

Employees
E&

Employees
==

Suppliers, Government
R - BT
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Indicator

5iR

Principle

Product responsibility
EmEE

Our products can be reproduced for
animal feeds or other products for
human intake. The maintenance of high
product quality is the only key of
customers’ loyalty.

PV AT I TR B ) SR SR A
HEANEMER ERBERF  RE
EnaEERE—FX-

Gearing ratio

BRLER

A suitable level of debt can increase
the capital efficiency and the
effectiveness of cash flow
management. We will monitor our
gearing ratio amongst the peers.
HEEBURAEARGARRETER
BIRKAL - BTG RIBREMNERL RE
REFWERLE

Total shareholder return (“TSR”)
#2813 B 3

The aim of our strategy is to maximise
total shareholder return.

BAORE R REGRAN LR -

Performance
E$:)

Complaint ratio

The product quality complaints were
not related to product recalls or food
poisoning in past three years.

2013
ZE-=F

2014
=

Gearing ratio
EiRE
The Group is keen to maintain a suitable
level of debt in order to meet its operating
commitments, such as purchase of raw

materials.

AEERNREFBENREKF - B
RBEEEAE (MBERMH)

TSR
RBRERE

The Company’s share price is affected
by various factors, such as volatility of
capital market, economic atmosphere
and investors’ expectation on
commodity prices. We are keen to
maintain a suitable dividend payout
ratio which can balance the future
funding requirement and return to
shareholders.
AAARERZBREYE - IRERH
BRY - KERIRKREELERER
B - RMERRBAIERARESR
KRR B35 7 E G F & Bk S

Definition

Bx

Complaint ratio is calculated as the
quantity of product which is subject to
quality issue to the total quantity of
product sold in the reporting period.
BFREDRREHALRE8REN
EnSERNMEEERREGE -

Gearing ratio is calculated as the
borrowings to total assets.

RIRL R TYRERRIAEEREHNE -

TSR combines share price appreciation
and dividends paid to show the total
return to shareholders.

BIRROMEBDERETERE MK
B MRBABRRE R BEIE -

Related stakeholders

M &

Customers, Government

5P B

Shareholders

R

Shareholders

BR

34

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014



ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
RERUGHEERES

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES ks R T AR E =

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for monitoring the business risks and ~ EE& & &5 B2 2 7K E g N I 5T 518 5 1t AR B
formulating plans to mitigate potential risks and uncertainties that materially affect the — RNEBEBEKEAF LN E LR & THE
business of the Group. The following risks and uncertainties may occur individually or 2 - T 31 & 1~B8 B F 2 AT 42 {8 5 £ ER o R B
simultaneously. There may be additional risks unknown and other risks which we 38 - JRAJeFE R FI B ATREFE T A - BHKE
currently believe to be immaterial, but turn out to be material. If the management team Ak & A2 H) R LR HMNE R 2 b ELfE o HEIEE
identifies any other risk to be material, the management team will report such risk to the ~ BfEBIEAHEMERABFEZEANER - E1EEH
Board and consider to implement a mitigation plan when appropriate. BEmERNEESER WEEERBEEREET
[BR A AR T o

The following risks and uncertainties are considered as material that may adversely — THIEB L TAARERRASBFEE K © AlALE
affect the business and financial position of the Group. REBMER RIBRIEXTHZE -

Operational risks

EEER

Factor Nature
Ex= =

Commodity price is unpredictable. Commodity price is volatile and strongly affected by the PRC economic environment. It is a
characteristic that the domestic corn kernel market is run by numerous individuals which are
relatively small and without a dominant position. It is the Group’s policy to manage the
commodity price risk by monitoring the corn kernel price on a daily basis instead of entering
into any forward contract.

P EE A TR - EmERREREY  BERASIIHTELERETZE - BATRNTSHNEERhERERPK
g RENRRBEEE) > UEETGM - AEEEEEREREARNKE S H BRI ORAE
1% MRS ERERBEL -

The PRC government’s policies may Some production projects may or may not be recommended by the PRC government
affect the Group’s operation and because of administrative issues or public interest issues. The Group will launch a feasibility
expansion plans. study and discuss any potential project with the government before launching those relevant

project. In addition, our management team, on behalf of the Group, plays an active role in
China Starch Industry Association, who can represent our peers to provide opinions and
feedback to government agencies.

P EBUNTBOR Al e B RSB A S IR ERTHEEMBIRBNEME - KLEEER BRI TS5 P RBTHE - K

FoatEl o SEEHITEEEES A - S At EMEBET AT R B mBUF R o uboh - AP
EREF(RRAEE)ETERHY LTERSTEEERAC  ARKAEMBABERE
RRVEHEIE

The Chinese economy is generally a The Group’s business is conducted in the PRC and our products are sold mostly in the PRC.

planned economy, in which periodic As such, our operations, financial results and future prospects are subject to, to a material

economic plans and measures are extent, the economic, social and political developments of the PRC.

promulgated and implemented by
the PRC government.
PRGBS FRRTEIRE  TEBNS REBNEKEREET - MBEPNERABHIRFELE - At - RMOEE  BHEER

TEHIR M W B ATAROB AT B R A ARARRAREZLFRENEE LS RBUAERMTE -

Increased rules and regulations on It is a trend that environment related rules and regulations will be more stringent year by year.
environmental related matter may Evolving standards, rules and regulations could result in increased costs, regulatory actions,
adversely affect the Group’s cost of or in extreme cases, litigation or plant closure.

operation.

IR R EARR AR R RGOS A e BIRGHBAR B LGB REREERABAE o B - RBIRIGDITEEE - rT SRR AE N
HAREENEERAERNTFTE - HEIBRETE  MAERKERT - EESIHFAXBREHEA -
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Operational risks

& B R

Factor
A=

The success of the Group is highly
dependent on the continued services of
the management.

ALK IEFRBEE R A SIFERHE
R

Nature
=1

Our historical success is attributable, to a large extent, to the in-depth industry knowledge
and experience of our executives and senior management. Nonetheless, there is no
assurance that we will be able to retain or recruit qualified and experienced staff to support
our existing operation as well as the business expansion or development of new products

HIBENRDRAEE LEBRATABRSRERBHTENRARELEELR -
it HPEERERSENRBENEEFSEREEERNABIEREXLE W&%%ﬁ@i

FEEmMAFIE TIE -

Strategic risks
KRG LR

Factor
PSS

The Group’s expansion plan or
development of new products may be
unsuccessful.

752 B AT AE A K DD STk M R AT 8 kR B
MEm -

Nature
=1

Research and development process takes long periods of time. We cannot guarantee the
success of new product upon implementation or the project execution may not be executed
as planned, both of which may have negative impact on the Group’s profitability.
MREAELSFTERFEETHBIE - BRMEERBNEDNHE L REIUSKT) - fIE B JRa]
BEERIRETENEE AT  MEVSUASENRAENERKEETE -

The Group may not successfully execute
divestments or acquisitions.

RERE R REROAKIN AL A ST IS -

All business combinations, acquisitions or formation of joint ventures entail a number of risks.
Significant write-off of assets, restructuring charges or unanticipated costs and liabilities
would affect the Group’s financial performance. In addition, the Group may be liable for past
acts, commitments, omissions or liabilities pertaining to the acquiree, which are unforeseen
or greater than anticipated.

FBEEBEH  WEXRIALECEIFESE TRR - AEMREEEBE  SEERICREER
AR BESHARENPMBRIVENTE - I REBETEFHEBKEET RGBT
T8 HG - BARBERAEREERSBRIERNEE -

Financial risks
B35 LB

Factor

The Group’s working capital may be
adversely affected by the economic
environment.

KIS S ok
FS2 o

BYHAKENZEESERT

Nature

The economic environment will affect the repayment ability of our customers and have
negative impact on our cash flow cycle. If the Group is required to raise additional funds
through bank borrowings and/or the debt markets, it will inevitably incur additional finance
costs and result in a higher gearing ratio.

KBERBGUHTEETPNENRE N EMYRRNBHENERTE - MAKEFTREHBIRT
B/ SEETSEEENES  BERHEESTEIBERN - EIRLEEF -

The cost of operation may still be higher
than expected upon completion of
technology upgrade projects.
AT AR IE B SeRi% - BER A AT AL
RATEE o

We cannot guarantee that a cost reduction programme can be successfully implemented as
planned. New technology or production knowhow may not be tested amongst the peers and
the final costs of production are subject to various factors at the time of implementation.
BIFEARBHRAAIER AR EIKINEE - TR A EZFI MBI RCREIR - &
BREERFAERTEERTROZERESE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group understands that our business has an impact on the environment and we
recognise the importance of sound environmental management practices and
sustainable business operations. We are committed to meeting all environmental
standards and policies as set by government. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a
balance between cost of production on one hand, and greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions and sewage disposal on the other hand. Our business is both energy and
water intensive, the Group has its own facilities to reduce GHG emissions and treat
sewage before disposal to city sewage network. A perpetual monitoring system on GHG
emissions and sewage disposal are reported to local environmental protection bureau
and open to public inspection. In order to protect our environment and reduce the cost
of production, we use methane generated from sewage treatment to produce steam for
internal use. In addition, we will also produce fertiliser by using sewage in order to
minimise the volume of sewage disposal.

USE OF RESOURCES

Other than corn kernel, coal and water are the other two major costs amongst the costs
of production. Such costs ranged from approximately 7% to 10% of the costs of
production in the past three years. Coal is a fossil fuel which is abundant in the
Shandong and Shanxi provinces. The electricity we used is generated from coal.
Although the Group does not have any option to choose the source of energy, we
spend much effort to improve production efficiency and, in return, we can reduce the
GHG intensity indirectly. Water is a vital resource for our planet. It is used to grow crops,
feed animals and people, generate electricity and steam, and produce our products. We
are committed to using water responsibly. The percentage of recycled water used
during production was approximately 25% to 28%.

BRI IER AR A A

BRIRHE

AEERARMNEBHRBEEX—EFE LR
PARENBRFEEERFHANAIFENEGLENER
1 o FAPIER D T BT A B E B0 A B BRIR IR AR L K
e HPNRERE/ELERAR  BEREHN
KRBT EERS F » RIFMEBHBEEAR
BRtRRRK  AEECARERDREREIN
KB A T 5K AR AT E TR IE - ANEEE
EE2RBREENRSESREREIRITK
PR XM s RRE RMES AR LART
RBALERH - RRERFRGEEERR - A
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F o Bbsh - REBERAFKEERE - RMITEFA
AR EREE -

EREM

BRERALON - EAIRKREERANF BINRAEE
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E10% 2 - HA—BEARE - RURKLES
BRREE - BRFERUEEENE S - BEARSE
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The followings are the statistics for the usage of coal and fresh water, GHG emissions LT ABAE=FHEEEKAE  BEREHERE

and water discharged in the past three years: JEIKBE R AT ET B
TERRER 2014
—E-NF

Resources used: HHAER:
Coal (tonne) R (WE) 117,952 183,452 212,992
Fresh water (in cubic metre) BIK (LK) 1,318,507 1,336,024 1,016,596
GHG emissions (in tonne of CO, equivalent)': BEREHN (HEE_StHK) :
Scope 1? #[E 12 249,978 447,113 492,280
Scope 2° &8 447,324 259,628 178,143
Total GHG emissions? BERBAYHR 590,342 599,867 557,029
GHG emission intensity index? BERBHENGRE RS 100 125 133
Water discharged (in cubic metre): IKFEKE (VLK) -
Waste water to recycled water EEKEE(L AfEIRBAK 520,304 434,260 468,950
Waste water to sewage network R 5K RS B EEK 1,592,844 1,442,847 1,423,171

The above KPI data have neither been audited nor verified. Pt F BRBIEIRW RS E R IALE -

Notes: PR -

1 The methodology used for the determination of emissions is based on various documents, 1 EEHRERER mﬁffﬁt*Y@iﬁﬁ*Eﬁ "
such as 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories, and the 2010 ﬁilPCC%;ﬂEﬁLEE#H@ : ?ﬁﬁ
Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China issued by the Department of 1'%”? BeREi(==F = FREENEEEE
Climate Change and IPCC Fourth Assessment Report. REHEA T )R IPCC R IR 4R o

2 Scope 1 emissions represent the emissions from combustion of fuels at stationary sources to 2 FE 1 HRIE R AR %ﬁﬁjg%u ) EE;‘UN?
generate electricity, steam, or heat which are owned or controlled by the Group and e E’X’T‘ﬁj&*ﬂﬁﬁmmm " AR
transportation emissions from owned or operated vehicles. RERIEE M BB

3 Scope 2 emissions are emissions from consumption of purchased electricity, steam and 3 HEHHARAAMMBEESN - AARBRIOHN
heat.

4 Total GHG emissions are direct emissions, plus emissions from the net change of purchasing 4 BERRINBERSEEIN  SIKABERL
and selling of electricity and steam. BENRFVFEBNELEOTR

5 GHG emission intensity index is calculated as the GHG emissions from physical products 5 BERRISCRERERRE R EREER
produced in the reporting period relative to the intensity in the 2014 base year (set to 100). PIFERRE B ZERRRE - BH T — R FHHE

(BREA100)5TH -
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company understands
maintaining high corporate governance standard is crucial to success in the future. The
Board and its dedicated executive management teams always demonstrate its
commitment in upholding sound internal control standard, accountability and integrity to
the shareholders and stakeholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) during the year under review and has applied the principles as laid down
with the aim of achieving a high level of governance, except that Mr. Tian Qixiang, the
chairman of the Board, did not attend the 2014 annual general meeting (the “2014
AGM”) because of his other business engagement.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the “Dealing Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in the Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Dealing Code applies
to all Directors and to all employees who are informed that they are subject to its
provisions. The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and that all the
Directors confirmed their compliance with the required standard set out in the Dealing
Code throughout the year under review.

BRI IER AR A A

rprRESR(EFDe (EF2 ) RARTRKFE
TEERHARRANARARESRINERE - EF
FHREENNTERER —BEHBERARBBRERR
M ERE R S RPN EE SR - &
1 B ST ARG

EEERER

ARREREEFEETEERARSMARAT
Fr EmARE (T EMARRD S+ OprEe e EE
sastRI (Mg A~ D &5IRE A 7 AME - I
ERCAANRAEBRSKPEEER  EES
SEFHEFAEEARSEABMALRHE —F N
FREBFAS ([ —T-OFERABFAE DB -

ESNESFRS

AARCHRMEAFTNESFERATR(EART
81D » BARGRN ETAR BR8Pk e BT EEeT
ABRETEFZSNRETARR - EETRE
RRPIAEE S R A R BAAETZTRRENE
B-ARREMaRESFHARSH 28EF
HERFEENEEQEFE B8 TEETRIFEN
HRERE -
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THE BOARD

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible for strategic leadership,
approving annual budget, formulating business plans and long term strategy, evaluating
the performance of the Group and supervising the management. The Board is also
responsible for the integrity of financial information and the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The Board has, with the assistance of the internal audit
department and its Audit Committee, conducted a review on the Group’s internal control
system including the adequacy of the resources, qualifications and experience of the
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and the relevant training
programmes and budget. In addition, the Board has also recognised the function of
corporate governance in accordance with the CG Code, including developing, reviewing
and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

To facilitate effective management, the Board has delegated certain functions to various
Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Each of these Board committees operates under their
respective written terms of reference on terms no less exacting than the code provisions.
Suggestions and conclusions of the Board committees will be reported to the Board in
its subsequent meeting.

In addition, the Board also delegates the day-to-day operational responsibilities to the
executive management teams under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer. The
Chief Executive Officer, working with the executive management teams, is responsible
for the operations and business development of the Group.

Four regular Board meetings are scheduled one year in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance by Directors. Additional Board meetings are convened as and when
required.
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The attendance record of the Directors at the 2014 AGM, Board meetings and Board
committee meetings held in 2014 are as follows:

Board
Ezg

Others
Hitgs

Regular
EHEH

Executive Directors: YTES:

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) MEREE(EE) 3/4 11
Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer) StELE (FTHAH) 4/4 11
Mr. Liu Xianggang BIRMI%EE 4/4 1
Mr. Yu Yingquan TRzEE 3/4 1
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:

Mr. Chen Zhijun REELE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Sun Mingdao HRBEE 4/4 1
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REERE 4/4 1

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) among the Directors and in particular, between Mr. Tian Qixiang
(Chairman) and Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer). The biographies of the Directors
are set out in the section named “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of this
Annual Report.

During the year under review, all Directors had participated in continuous professional
development (the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills by attending
seminar or course and reading materials relevant to the Company’s business and
director’s duties and responsibilities. In addition, in order to allow the Directors to
understand the latest development of regulatory and compliance issues, they were also
provided with market news and regulatory updates from time to time.

The type of training received by each Director during the year under review is
summarised as follows:

BEER_Z-NFRRAEFKREG  —Z—OFE
THEEEERESSREg RN HERSW
T

Annual
General
Meeting

RRAEAS

Nomination
Committee
REZEE

Audit Remuneration
Committee ~ Committee
EREEE FMzEe

N/A 11 11 X
N/A N/A N/A N
N/A N/A N/A N
N/A N/A N/A X
2/2 11 11 N
2/2 11 11 N
1/2 0N 0N N
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Type of CPD
BHEEXRERR

Executive Directors: HITEE

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) BEFELEE(EE)

Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer) St E A (TTHAAE)

Mr. Liu Xianggang BIRmTE

Mr. Yu Yingguan FEREEE

Independent non-executive Directors: BIYFHITES

Mr. Chen Zhijun PREELE

Mr. Sun Mingdao RAE &

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REELAE

A attending briefings/seminars/forums/workshops/conferences relating to director’s duties or
other relevant topics

B: reading materials, such as newspapers, journals, business updates and regulatory updates

relating to business, economy or directors’ duties
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and not performed
by the same individual. Mr. Tian Qixiang holds the position of the Chairman, primarily
responsible for strategic positioning. Mr. Gao Shijun serves as the Chief Executive
Officer, primarily responsible for the operations and business development of the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Siu Hong is a full-time employee and has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company since February 2008. He also serves as the secretary of Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and other board
committees as organised by the Board from time to time. Mr. Leung is responsible for
advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on
governance matters, for example, to ensure Board procedures and applicable laws and
regulations are followed.

Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Association of Chartered Certified Accountant. Mr. Leung is also a fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

During the year under review, Mr. Leung took no less than 15 hours professional training
to update his skills and knowledge.

DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Pursuant to the articles of the Company (the “Articles”), every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that general
meeting.

Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of one year subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles. Each independent
non-executive Director is required to inform the Company as soon as practicable if there
is any change that may affect his independence and must provide an annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of Directors
subsequent to the date of the 2014 Interim Report are set out below:

Mr. Tian Qixiang, an executive Director, tendered his resignation for all his positions in
Electricity Supply Company of Shouguang City on 3 December 2014.

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, an independent non-executive Director, was appointed as an
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, on 4 July 2014.
He resigned from this position with effect from 18 November 2014.
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On 27 February 2015, each of the following executive Directors entered into a
supplemental agreement with the Company revising his annual salary as director of the
Company with effect from 1 March 2015. The original and revised annual salary of each
executive Directors are shown below:

RZE-RF_A-+tH TIHERTERER
RARI LM - BRI REERARRESEH
FEHL BT AF=A—BRER - F]T
EENFERIREETFEHFT 20T

Revised (RMB)

Original (RMB)

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) HESFLE(EE)

Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer) B AL (FTEHAAE)
Mr. Liu Xianggang ZIKMIEE

Mr. Yu Yingquan FaReEsE

The salary increment of the executive Directors by not more than 10% per annum will no
longer be applicable subsequent to 1 March 2015.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process, financial controls, internal control and risk management
system of the Group and to provide recommendations and advice to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor as well as their terms of
appointment.

The Audit Committee of the Company currently consists of all independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Zhijun, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa,
Ken. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the results and the financial
reports and internal control measures with the management, discussed the annual audit
issues with the external auditor and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of the external auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The major function of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration policy and remuneration structure for all Directors. The
Remuneration Committee of the Company currently consists of all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Zhijun, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa,
Ken, and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and made
recommendation on the remuneration, including discretionary bonus, and the
remuneration policies of the Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The major functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure and
composition of the Board, to implement and review the Board Diversity Policy, to review
and provide recommendations on the terms of Director’s service contract, and to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently consists of all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Zhijun, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa,
Ken and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee made recommendation to the
Board for the re-election of Directors at the 2014 AGM, reviewed the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and evaluated the structure and composition
of the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, culture, race, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and independence. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

The following graph provides an analysis on the composition of the Board:

Number of
Directors

EEAH

Executive
Directors

HITES

4
3
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Gender Designation Age group
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards, using and
applying consistently suitable accounting policies, and making reasonable and prudent
judgement and estimates. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on
its ability to continue as a going concemn.

The financial information and plans were discussed in the regular Board meetings. The
Chairman of the Company is responsible for explaining the latest business development
and financial projections to the Directors.

The work scope and responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 47
to 48. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the fee payable to the external auditor in
respect of audit and non-audit services is set out below:

Audit:
Tax representative service:

HK$1,466,900
HK$33,100

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is ultimately responsible for the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group. The management of the Group has dedicated to improving the efficiency of
accounting and financial reporting. During the year under review, the Board, through the
internal audit department, has performed internal control review on major operations of
the Group. The scope of review is determined by the Board and the Audit Committee.
The results, with potential control, operational, compliance and financial impact, are
discussed in the Board meeting. The Group is not aware of any material internal control
weaknesses affecting the overall operation.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, shareholder(s) holding not less than one tenth
(10%) of the paid up capital of the Company can convene an extraordinary general
meeting (the “EGM”) by depositing the requisition in writing to the Directors or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring the EGM. The requisition in writing
should be sent to the Company’s office at Suite 3312, Tower 1, Times Square, 1
Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The same procedure also applies to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders. The Board will review
shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the above
address or by email (ir@chinastarch.com.hk).
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In case of shareholding enquires, shareholders should direct their enquiries to the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, via its
website at www.tricoris.com, or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com, or dial its
hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person at its public counter at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The Company recognises the importance of shareholders’ privacy and will not disclose
shareholders’ information without their consent, unless required by law to do so.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company did not make any changes to its constitutional document during the year
under review.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BED R

.
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Starch Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 104,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SRS lRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—_LT—NF+_A=+—HIEFE

2014
—2-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Revenue WA 5 4,169,785 3,422,033
Cost of sales FHE A (3,806,266) (8,121,681)
Gross profit EF 363,519 300,352
Distribution expenses DIHER (110,953) (86,666)
Administrative expenses 1T E R (117,164) (92,716)
Other income and gains, net E U A R Mz RE s 18 6 19,004 20,391
Provision for impairment losses of M - BB KR ER R E R IERE
property, plant and equipment 16 (86,437) -
Operating profit BT 67,969 141,361
Finance income BhE YA 7 38,184 29,356
Finance expenses BEEH 8 (22,196) (7,881)
Profit before taxation B 75 B A1) 9 83,957 162,836
Income tax expenses FRiSHi sz i 10 (17,612) (38,675)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 7845 [ 8 & 47 & WS 42 58 66,345 124,161
Attributable to: AT & IR
Owners of the Company ZN/NGTE 2 =N 62,725 122,198
Non-controlling interests AL AR AR SR i 3,620 1,963
66,345 124,161
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB) BIRERRESET (ARE) 13 0.0105 0.0206

The notes on pages 56 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 256 & 104 B KM 5 B& GBI SRR E R E 5 ©
statements. Details of proposed final dividend payable to owners of the Company are B RBER AN A T A A BER R EIRL S 5 I5 S K
set out in note 14. F147A °

PERBERARAT —B—MEER 49



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
S B A B KA &

As at 31 December 2014 R=ZZ—WF+=-A=+—H

2014
—T-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Non-current assets FRENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 16 1,263,365 1,208,295
Prepaid lease payments FERNEERK 17 215,253 148,452
Deposits for acquisition of prepaid lease payments Ui TE 1 E R E S 19 20,830 60,945
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHEYIZE - RE R ERIRES
plant and equipment 39,779 29,684
Deferred tax assets IEEFIIEE E 26 22,537 1,091
1,561,764 1,448,467
Current assets REBEE
Prepaid lease payments TENRER 17 4,917 3,467
Inventories VER] 20 276,679 384,881
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE MW R 21 381,268 523,574
Pledged bank deposits BRI TER 22 6,000 10,000
Fixed deposits with maturity period =fEA R EEEEFER
over three months 23 430,000 480,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 23 184,568 155,200
1,283,432 1,557,122
Total assets BB E 2,845,196 3,005,589
Equity and liabilities ERRkEE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 72 T# & A E{L 25
Share capital ik 24 532,656 532,357
Reserves M 25 1,454,128 1,423,016
1,986,784 1,955,373
Non-controlling interests FEFRAR IR R 27,053 23,433
Total equity e AR 2,013,837 1,978,806
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SHMBIKRAR

As at 31 December 2014 RZ-Z—MNMF+=-A=+—H

2014
—2-mF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Borrowings &= 27 2,882 3,768
Deferred income FEEWA 28 34,067 37,845
36,949 41,613

Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER TR 29 465,609 510,656
Income tax payable FEETIS R 20,972 21,314
Borrowings ¢ 27 281,550 426,921
Employee housing deposits BETRERES 30 26,279 26,279
794,410 985,170
Total liabilities HEF 831,359 1,026,783
Total equity and liabilities EERAEEE 2,845,196 3,005,589
Net current assets FREEEFHE 489,022 571,952
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABAERS 2,050,786 2,020,419
Tian Qixiang Yu Yingquan
HE# T2
Director Director
EF )

s

The notes on pages 56 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 5556 % 104 B Mi3E i & G FEERER M Eh 35 -
statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MBI E

As at 31 December 2014 R=ZZ—WF+=-A=+—H

2014
—T-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Assets EE
Non-current assets FRENEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB A R AR E 18 159,121 159,121
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JPE WP BB N B3R IE 18 564,135 592,112
Prepayments TR KIE 21 354 353
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRESZEY 23 2,003 6,807
566,492 599,272
Total assets wWEE 725,613 758,393
Equity and liabilities EnRaE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Zx A Fl# A A FE{h
Share capital ey 24 532,656 532,357
Reserves i 25 191,811 225,281
Total equity R 724,467 757,638
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables HE A FEI R 29 1,146 755
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 725,613 758,393
Net current assets RBEEFE 565,346 598,517
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBEE 724,467 757,638
Tian Qixiang Yu Yingquan
HEH¥ Fxz
Director Director
EF EF
The notes on pages 56 to 104 are an integral part of these financial statements. E56E 104 BRI M BEIRERAHR D ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SHEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—_LT—NF+_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATHRENEL
Non-
Share Share Special Capital  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserve  earnings Total interests equity
FER
Rx  ROEE BHUEE EXEE  iERE  BEER @i RREE  ERAT
Note  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ME ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFI . ARETT ARETT ARETR
note 25())  (note 25(ii)
(BizE25() 25(i)
At 1 January 2013 W=Z-=%-f—-H 523,670 222,046 27,080 56,196 137,408 878435 1,844,830 21,470 1,866,300
Profit and total comprehensive AEEFIRREA
income for the year Waxies = = - - - 122198 122,198 1963 124,161
2012 final dividend T —ERERE 14 - (31,496) - - - - (31,496) - (31,496)
Issue of shares under scrip REABRA B2l
dividend scheme EIRH 24 8,687 11,154 - - - - 19,84 - 19,841
Transfer to statutory reserves & NETRHE - - - - 12,083 (12,089) - - -
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=%
and 1 January 2014 +=A=+-8
R=ZZF-m%-A-B 582,357 201,704 27,080 56,196 149,436 938,600 1,955,373 23,433 1,978,806
Profit and total comprehensive AEEFBEREGA
income for the year et - - - - - 62,725 62,725 3,620 66,345
2013 final dividend ZE-=ERERE 14 - (81,882) - - - - (31,882) - (81,882)
Issue of shares under scrip RENRR S5 E
dividend scheme Bk 24 299 269 - - - - 568 - 568
Transfer to statutory reserves 8 NATHE = = = - 12616 (12616) - - -
At 31 December 2014 R=-ZE-ME
+=ZR=t-H 582,656 170,091 27,080 56,196 162,052 1,038,709 1,986,784 27,083 2,013,837

s

The notes on pages 56 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 5556 % 104 B Mi3E i & G FEERER M Eh 35 -
statements.

PERBERARAT —B—MEER 53



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
atHEAKNER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZEZZ—NF+-—A=+—HILFE

2014
—E—nmE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities BRETHNEESRE
Profit before taxation B B AT A1) R 83,957 162,836
Adjustments for: KRB UATIER -
Finance income BE WA (38,184) (29,356)
Finance expenses BEEMA 22,196 7,881
Provision for impairment losses of M - RN ERERERE
property, plant and equipment 86,437 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - WEREEITE 117,474 91,485
Losses/(gains) on disposals of HEME - BEREEZ
property, plant and equipment B8 () 6 6,142 (238)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEf 0 & A B 3,820 2,623
Amortisation of steam connection income 2R BN R U 7 B 0 8
and government grants 6 (3,778) (8,742)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESHEEB AT
working capital LERERE 278,064 231,489
Increase in deferred income attributable to Z TR A B A
steam connection income PEIEUT ASE AN = 1,357
Increase in deferred income attributable to BT #6 B FE A B0 3R RE U A S8 70
government grants - 13,600
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERM A () 108,202 (202,375)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 REMERTORD (3L h)
other receivables 142,306 (136,386)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables & 5 & H e 2k (R A>) /2240 (45,047) 14,667
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEEYL/(FR)WRE 483,525 (77,648)
Income taxes paid BT S (39,400) (35,650)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEEEEE(FR) MBS FE
operating activities 444,125 (113,298)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SHAKAER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_-_Z—MNF+_A=+—HILtFE

2014
— M
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Cash flows from investing activities RETENESR
Interest received B UF S 38,184 29,356
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEDE  BER&E (266,867) (422,641)
Deposits for acquisition of prepaid lease payments i 81 8 & 2 1 (R 5% = (28,285)
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHEME - BB R RE E’M%*’V\
plant and equipment (16,731) (25,290)

Increase in prepaid lease payments TR EFIE N (31,956) (1,449
Proceeds on disposals of property, HEME  BE REEER
plant and equipment 8,380 1,001

Decrease/(increase) in fixed deposits with =18 A LA ETE B

maturity period over three months (g hn) 50,000 (140,000)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits BEIPERITEROR L (38 hn) 4,000 (7,500
Net cash used in investing activities REREFANIREFHE (214,990) (594,802)
Cash flows from financing activities BETHNRESRE
Interest paid BEAF 8 (22,196) (7,881)
Dividends paid B E (31,314) (11,655)
Proceeds from borrowings & RS R IE 390,950 494,068
Repayments of borrowings BB R (537,207) (70,470
Decrease in employee housing deposits BTEERIBERD = (28)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE(FER)/EENRSFE

financing activities (199,767) 404,034
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and e RIBEESEYEMN CRd)FE

cash equivalents 29,368 (304,066)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January N—A—HOEBEEREESEEY 155,200 459,266
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+-_A=+—BHBE&R

HeZEEY 23 184,568 155,200

The notes on pages 56 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 5556 % 104 B Mi3E i & G FEERER M Eh 35 -

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& ff B 35 30 R P 5

56

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Starch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands under the Cayman Islands Companies Law as an exempted company
with limited liability on 29 November 2006. Its ultimate holding company is Merry
Boom Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P. O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal activities of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are the manufacture and
sale of cornstarch, lysine, starch-based sweetener, modified starch and its related
products and generation and sales of electricity and steam.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
unless otherwise stated, and are approved for issue by the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) on 12 March 2015 .

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The Group has adopted HKAS 36 (amendment), “Impairment of assets on
the recoverable amount disclosures” for non-financial assets. This
amendment removed certain disclosures of the recoverable amount of
cash generating units which had been included in HKAS 36 by the issue of
HKFRS 13.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The adoption of HKAS 36 (amendment) does not have material impact on
the Group’s results and financial position nor any substantial changes to
the Group’s accounting policies and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

Other new standards, new interpretations and amendments for existing
standards which are effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2014 have no material impact to the Group.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from
the Company’s first financial year commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in
accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of expected impact of the changes in
the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the
period of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to
be significant and only the presentation and the disclosure of information in
the consolidated financial statements will be affected.

The following new standards, new interpretations and amendments for
existing standards potentially relevant to the Group’s operations, have
been issued, are mandatory, and will be adopted by the Group for financial
years beginning on or after 1 January 2015:

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of acceptable methods of
(amendment) depreciation and amortisation?

HKAS 27 (amendment) Equity method in separate financial statements?

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments*

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers®

Annual improvements to Amendment to a number of HKFRSs'
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

Annual improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

Amendment to a number of HKFRSs'

Amendment to a number of HKFRSs?

! Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2016
8 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2017
4 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application and is not yet in a
position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs have any
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S OF A 5 3R R B

2

58

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

@)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@)

Business combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or
loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S OF A 5 3R R B

2

60

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(@)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

23

2.4

25

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”).
Information relating to segment assets and liabilities is not disclosed as
such information is not regularly reported to the chief operating decision
maker.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S OF A 5 3R R B

2

62

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.6

(©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period;

(ii) income and expenses for each profit or loss are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than those under construction, are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Property, plant and equipment under construction for production or
administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Property, plant and equipment
under construction is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over the
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 15-35 years
Plant and machinery 5-12 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Other machinery 4-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other income and
gains, net’ in the profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets

(@)

(b)

(d)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘pledged bank
deposits’, ‘fixed deposits with maturity period over three months’,
‘cash and cash equivalents’ and ‘trade and other receivables’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position (notes 2.10 and 2.11).

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9

2.10

(d)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the profit or
loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the

business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.10

2.1

2.12

2.13

2.14

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an

unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.15

2.16

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

(@  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period
in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

()

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Employee benefits

(@

Pension obligations

The Group sponsors defined contributions pension plans in Hong
Kong and the Mainland China. A defined contribution plan is a
pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. Contributions made to the defined
contributions pension plans are expenses as incurred. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in future payment is available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets) and including that of non-
vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to
save). Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. At the
reporting date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (hominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

2.18 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Provisions (Continued)

2.19

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, and represents amounts receivables for goods supplied, stated
net of returns and value added taxes.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of cornstarch, lysine, starch-based sweetener, and modified starch
are recognised when a group entity has delivered goods to the customer,
the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the
goods, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the goods. Delivery does not occur until the products have
been shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customer, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Sales of steam and electricity are recognised when steam and electricity
are generated and transmitted.

Steam connection income received from customers for the provision of
steam supply are deferred and amortised into the profit or loss over the
estimated usage period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loan and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest
rate.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

(@ The Group as lessee

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to the profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Land use rights
Land use rights are accounted for as prepaid leases payments and
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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72

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing of new
or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when all of the
following criteria are fulfilled:

(@) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale;

(b) management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

(¢) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset are available;
and

Uil the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets
and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use on a
straight-line basis over its useful life, not exceeding five years.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are disclosed and described separately in the
consolidated financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide
further understanding of the financial performance of the Group. They are
material items of income or expenses that have been separately due to the
significance of their nature or amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits with maturity period
over three months, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, trade and other
payables, and employee housing deposits. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(@ Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in
foreign currencies, hence, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. Approximately 13% (2013: 13%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the entities of the Group.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rate.

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
translation or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily with respect to United States Dollars (‘US$”) and
Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$”). The management considers the
foreign exchange risk with respect to US$ and HK$ is not
material as the net exposure of the financial assets and
liabilities denominated in these currencies is insignificant.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions arising
from its operations primarily do not expose to material foreign
exchange risk as the Group’s assets and liabilities are
primarily denominated in RMB. The Group generates RMB
from sales in the PRC to meet its liabilities denominated in
RMB. The Group has not used any forward contracts or
currency borrowings to hedge its exposure as the cost-
benefit is considered not effective.
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3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk
Corn kernels are the major raw materials of the product of the
Group and they are subject to price changes in the
commodity market. During the year, management did not use
any commodity futures to control the exposure of the Group
to price fluctuations of corn kernel. Instead, purchases are
made in bulk at the time when the market price of corn kernel
is considered as low.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates
as exposure to cash flows interest rate risk arisen from
borrowings obtained at variable rates is substantially offset by
cash held at variable rates. The Group’s interest-free
government loan and bank loans issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The management
considers the fair value interest rate risk insignificant as
majority of these borrowings are repayable within one year.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables
from third parties. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
creditability of each of the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limit to each customer. Credit limit of each customer is
reviewed monthly. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In determining whether allowance for bad and
doubtful debts is required, the Group takes into consideration of the
aging status and the likelihood of collection. Following the
identification of doubtful debts, the responsible sales personnel
discuss with the relevant customers and report on the recoverability,
specific allowance is only made for trade receivable that is unlikely to
be collected. In this regards, the directors are satisfied that this risk
is minimal and adequate allowance for doubtful debts, if any, has
been made in the consolidated financial statements after assessing
the collectability of individual debts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on cash at bank deposited in the PRC and bills
receivables is monitored closely by management of the Group who
will assess the reputation, the risk of recoverability and the financial
information, if any, of the counterparties before the placing of
deposits or accepting the bills receivables.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in respect
of the trade and other receivables, with exposures spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of approximately RMB881,910,000 (2013:
RMB866,403,000).

At the reporting date, the Group held liquid assets including trade
and other receivables of RMB195,765,000 (2013: RMB215,113,000)
that are expected to readily generate cash flow for managing liquidity
risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S OF A 5 3R R B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXEBREE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HIEREEEZEHEBEE(F)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) () REBELER(E)
Liquidity table TEE & &K

TRAFMLAEEMIEIT LS R
BENARIEA - ZRER
AEE R ERNHNRF R
HWPBAERRRRSRE
MRS - TRARESHEEA

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows: B AREGRF R -
Total
Within Between Between Over undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flow
AERASE
—E£HR —FEWE MEZRF BREF REAHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Group K£E
2014 —E-E
Trade and other payables ZHREMEMNZK 391,120 - - - 391,120
Borrowings B3R
— interest-free — &8 1,550 886 1,996 - 4,432
— interest-bearing = qirlgl 290,939 - - - 290,939
Employee housing deposits B TRERES 26,279 - - - 26,279
709,888 886 1,996 - 712,770
2013 —E-Z=F
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER 429,097 - - - 429,097
Borrowings fER
— interest-free — %8 3,323 886 2,659 223 7,091
— interest-bearing —i8 436,854 - - - 436,854
Employee housing deposits B TEERES 26,279 - - - 26,279
895,553 886 2,659 223 899,321
Company F NG
2014 —E-NE
Other payables H b e R 1,146 - - - 1,146
2013 —B-=F
Other payables H MR 755 - - - 755
76 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain a suitable
capital structure which maximises shareholders’ value. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce the cost of capital.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirement.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total borrowings (note 27) divided by total assets. The
gearing ratios as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

3

R EE (F)
32 EBAXER

AEEEREANBERRERER
ARERENEN LR EE ARG
B UERREEERERE - BT
BRI BE AR - AREFRER
EARRX MRS SHE  MRRE
EEAR - HTHRAHEEE - BN
EE KA -

ARABSEEMNERRHBAET
EMIMNFEHENEAEK

AEBBBERLREIREAR - Z L
RUAE TR AR (M Tk 27) B AR A E At
HEYH -R_F-EOFER_FT—=F
T A=+ RZEREEMT

2014 2013

—2-mE =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTFT

Total borrowings Gt 284,432 430,689
Total assets BB E 2,845,196 3,005,589
Gearing ratio IE S 10.0% 14.3%

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis or using prices from observable current market
transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.
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78

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(@

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Note 2.8(d) describes that trade and bills receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows as expected by management
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Valuation on inventories

The Group assesses periodically if the inventories have been suffered from
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.9.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving items. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such finished goods, work-in-progress and raw materials primarily on the
estimated future selling price and market conditions. Where the estimates
of the net realisable value are less than expected, a material allowance may
arise.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management will adjust the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different to that of previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 2.7. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated using the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. If the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are
recognised in the profit or loss.

During the year, certain property, plant and equipment have been impaired
by RMB86,437,000, details of which are set out in note 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARSHER

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

AEBERNREZNRADHAT :

2014

—E-ImF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Cornstarch and ancillary corn-refined products FRBH R ERRINTEIESR 2,971,862 2,395,323
Lysine and its related products TR & HABRAE M 671,206 516,418
Starch-based sweetener TR HE 253,025 217,336
Modified starch RN 218,123 235,269
Electricity and steam BHRENA 55,569 57,687
4,169,785 3,422,033

The Executive Directors, being the chief operating decision maker of the Group,
consider the business segmentation from product perspective. The Executive
Directors assess the performance of operating segments based on a measure of
adjusted operating profit. The Group’s operating segments are as follows:

Cornstarch — the manufacture and sale of cornstarch and
ancillary corn-refined products
Lysine = the manufacture and sale of lysine and its

related products

Starch-based sweetener the manufacture and sale of starch-based

sweetener
Modified starch — the manufacture and sale of modified starch
Electricity and steam — the production and sale of electricity and
steam

Interest income and expense are not included in the result for each operating
segment as these are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to
reportable segments.

Unallocated income and expenses mainly consist of certain government grants
and corporate costs respectively which cannot be allocated to individual
segments.

Sales between segments are charged at cost or with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
The revenue from external parties reported to the management is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S OF A 5 3R R B

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WARSHER(HF)

Starch-
based Modified Electricity
Cornstarch Lysine  sweetener starch  and steam Total

EXEH AER BOE  RERD  BARES at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR ARMTE ARETR ARNTL ARMTL ARETR

2014 —E-—ME
Sales to external customers RINEEEHE 2,971,862 671,206 253,025 218,123 55,569 4,169,785
Inter-segment sales D EPEHE 147,149 11,601 - - 47,582 206,332
Reportable segment results [/ 2MEE 232,542 27,682 21,194 18,617 (21,987) 278,048
Unallocated income AP BECUA 15,723
Unallocated expenses (note) ROBEFx () (225,802)
Finance income BB U A 38,184
Finance expenses REER (22,196)
Profit before taxation BB AT 83,957
Other segment information:  Hftt o5 2p&EH :
Depreciation and amortisation W& R 42,995 31,970 9,228 2,113 13,544 99,850
Provision for impairment losses of %% - BiE &%/

property, plant and equipment  B)F{EEIERE 20,306 15,605 - 4,907 28,053 68,871
2013 —E-=F
Sales to external customers RINRBEEHE 2,395,323 516,418 217,336 235,269 57,687 3,422,033
Inter-segment sales D EPEHE 174,431 370 136 - 110,220 285,157
Reportable segment results [ D PEE 149,585 85,770 9,768 27,335 16,062 288,520
Unallocated income AOBREA 13,330
Unallocated expenses (note) RO (Fi3E) (160,489)
Finance income BEUA 29,356
Finance expenses mEEA (7,881)
Profit before taxation CS TR b 162,836
Other segment information:  Hfti 5 2&EH :
Depreciation and amortisation e N 31,288 23,485 9,187 688 13,247 77,895
Note: Bi3E
The unallocated expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 include unallocated HE-ZT-—MF+-_A=1+—HILEFEE ' KHERH
provision for impairment losses of property, plant and equipment of RMB17,566,000 (2013: T REYE  BEREENRD EREBBEEEA
nil) and unallocated depreciation and amortisation charges of RMB21,444,000 (2013: R¥17,566,000C (=2 —=4% : &) ' ARKRDE
RMB16,213,000). 8 TR 5 2 A RME 21,444,000 7T (= E— =4 :

AR 16,213,0007T) °

The revenue from external customers in the PRC for the year ended 31 December BE-Z-—NF+-A=1+—HIFE " X
2014 is RMB3,609,279,000 (2013: RMB2,992,667,000), and the revenue from EFBEMNIIREFLRARBARE
external customers from other countries is RMB560,506,000 (2013: 3,609,279,0007L( =T —=F: AR
RMB429,366,000). 2,992,667,0007T) * ifi 3K B H A BRI R Z

FaA B AR 560,506,000 7T (ZF—=
F : AR¥ 429,366,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S BERRME

6 OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6 H g A R R 58
2014 2013
—EF-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥ETT
Government grants (note) BT B (B =) 8,102 4,734
Amortisation of steam connection income and 35 A 1 B K% IR s B 2
government grants (note 28) (FffzE28) 3,778 3,742
Gain on sales of scrap materials SHE R 2 e 4,324 2,572
(Losses)/gains on disposals of property, HEME  BEREEZ (BE), WS
plant and equipment (6,142) 238
Others HA 8,942 9,105
19,004 20,391
Note: B

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the government grants mainly represented the
subsidies from local government for, inter alia, supporting the application of energy-saving
technology and domestic business of the Group. The government grants were granted at the
discretion of the government and were not recurring in nature.

7  FINANCE INCOME

Interest income on bank deposits

RITEAREFBUA

HE-Z-NF+-_A=+—BALFE BB
TR RESBAT (B e AR BIRAE
BE i e B A T R (L A0 B B o BUR#E B 70 B ERS
BBERE - WEIHERHIEE -

BMEWA

2014
—E-mE

RMB’000
AR¥T T

RMB’000
ARBT T

38,184 29,356

8 FINANCE EXPENSES

BMEEH

2014
—B-me
RMB’000
ARETF R

2013

RMB’000
ARBFT

Interest on LATIE B LS -
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable within — ARRAFERNBIEED
5 years RITER 21,976 6,921
— Discounted bills receivables — BB ER 220 960
22,196 7,881
FERMERERAT —B-NEFR 81



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S OF A 5 3R R B

9

10

82

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following
items:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

W2~ B MR ETE (FIRE16)

BBt A1 A

BREBIRIEE R, (GEA) TIEIE -

2014
—s-—ms

2013
—F—=%
RMB’000
AR®ETT

RMB’000
AR¥ TR

(note 16) 117,474 91,485
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments (note 17) &t &k ss (izE17) 3,820 2,623
Total depreciation and amortisation e R A EE 121,294 94,108
Provision for impairment losses of property, ME - R KRR E R RS (i 16)

plant and equipment (note 16) 86,437 -
Losses/(gains) on disposals of property, EEWE  BE R BB (W)

plant and equipment 6,142 (238)
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses X () EiEFE (69) 4,258
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERAEZ HNFEERA

(note 20) (H320) 3,751,919 2,914,034
Operating lease payments LATHER 659 567
Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ (EE@AHY  BREEHS

emoluments) (note 11) (KF=E11) 130,225 119,616
Research and development expenses (note) e kR E R (M) 10,215 6,927
Auditor’s remuneration 2GR A

— Audit services — BIZIRT 1,162 1,080

— Non-audit services — EBERS 38 24

Note:
Research and development costs include staff costs of employees in the research and

development department, which are included in the employee benefit expenses as disclosed
above.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

PRC Enterprises Income Tax (“EIT”) PRI SR ([REMER])

10

GEE

MARFABEKAREREDEEZETHA  FE
SEALERMEEZEEBAFHAT

FRr8Hi<

2014
—g-mE

2013

RMB’000
AR¥ T

RMB’000
AREFT

— Current year — KREE 42,821 39,772
— Over-provision in prior years — BAFEREEE (3,763) (1,260)
Deferred income tax (note 26) IEFEFTSHL (i 7E26) (21,446) 163
17,612 38,675

The Group’s major business is in the PRC. Under the law of the PRC on EIT and
its Implementation Regulation, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group entities’
profit neither arose in nor was derived from Hong Kong during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

10

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation as
follows:

10 FRSHiH ()

AERHIA AT ERF ISR T

2014
—ET-MmE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARKETFIT
Profit before taxation [ 5 BT AR 83,957 162,836
Income tax expenses calculated LAE AR 25% (ZF—=4F : 25%)
at applicable tax rate at 25% (2013: 25%) STEMATEHFASZ 20,989 40,709
Tax effects of THBENREZE
— Different tax rate — TRFE 91 422
— Expenses not deductible for tax purpose — TR 798 1,640
— Income not subject to tax — BAERBRA (982) (2,755)
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax — AL ACHERZ RISEER
losses - (476)
— Temporally differences not recognised — RERYRERFE (170) 395
— Tax losses not recognised — KERZBRBEE 649 -
— Over-provision in prior years — BEFERERE (3,763) (1,260)
17,612 38,675

As at 31 December 2014, deferred tax liabilities of approximately RMB49,753,000
(2013: RMB44,212,000) have not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of the retained profits of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries as the Company controls the dividend policy of these PRC
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not be reversed in the

foreseeable future.

BRI EA A R A A

R-T—WE+—F=+—H BRARF
25 S BB A R B ECE - AR
EERAA] GEIE A T8 B AR KRB E - R &5t
DR A 7R BB A B8 13 5B AT RO
Tt TE e SRR JE o TH B (B 49 A R 49,753,000
T(ZT—=%: AR#44,212,0007T) °

—B-mEER 83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S OF A 5 3R R B

11

84

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BERFNAX (BERESHE)

2014 2013
—ET-—F —T—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
Wages and salaries TITE NS 90,563 83,067
Pension cost (note) BARESER () 12,661 16,234
Staff welfares 8 T4EH 27,001 20,315
130,225 119,616

Note: Boex

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group in
future years.

The Group has sponsored a defined contribution scheme which is managed by an approved
trustee registered under Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Ordinance”) for its employees in Hong Kong. Both the Group and its employees in Hong
Kong are required to contribute a maximum of 5% of each individual’s relevant income or a
limited amount (the limit was adjusted from HK$1,250 to HK$1,500 per month with effect
from 1 June 2014) as prescribed by the MPF Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group and independently administered.

The Group has also sponsored various defined contribution plans for its employees in the
PRC. These plans are organised by the relevant municipal and provincial governments based
on certain percentage of the relevant employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations payable to all
existing and future retired employees under these plans and the Group has no further
constructive obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHESTPAID 12 EZ=RAZREHFATHNEHES
INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) E=B<

Basic Retirement
salaries and Discretionary benefit
allowance bonus scheme
contribution

BEXxEe Fees BIRERIEH R Total
5911 e WERA HER &%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR%T R ARBTR AR%TR ARSTR

2014 —E-IF

Executive directors: MITES :
Tian Qixiang HEE 516 - - - 516
Gao Shijun BitE 396 - - 53 449
Liu Xianggang 2% 277 - - 53 330
Yu Yingquan FHz 300 - - - 300

Independent non-executive BV IEHTES

directors:
Chen Zhijun” BRASE" - 50 - - 50
Sun Mingdao® A - 50 - - 50
Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REIE - 87 - - 87
1,489 187 - 106 1,782
2013 —T—=%F
Executive directors: WITES:
Tian Qixiang HEE 516 = 500 = 1,016
Gao Shijun SHE 396 = 500 47 943
Liu Xianggang 2% [l 277 = 500 47 824
Yu Yingquan Tz 300 - 500 - 800
Independent non-executive MBI IEITES :
directors:
Cao Zenggong* BT - 20 - - 20
Chen Zhijun” BRASE" = 16 = = 16
Dong Yanfeng* sEEg = 34 = = 34
Sun Mingdao” ZERE" - 16 - - 16
Yue Kwai Wa, Ken R = 88 = = 88
1,489 174 2,000 94 3,757
#  Retired with effect from 5 September 2013 tRZE-=FNAARERRAK
*  Resigned with effect from 5 September 2013 * RIE—=FNARBEHE
A Appointed on 5 September 2013 fORZE—=FNARBEZEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S OF A 5 3R R B

12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four
(2013: four) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining
one (2013: one) individual were as follows:

12 EERIEBEFATHHNE (A)

(b) EEEBHFAL
AEBRAZRRFALTF  OE(Z
Z—=F NRHR)RAAANES
BEOMESRN EXHDITZY] - 8T
—H(CE—=F: —R)BaFAL

HES T
2014 2013
=t Ltk =H==4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFTT
Basic salaries and allowance HEAF S Mo2ab 649 666
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RRERET IR 13 12
662 678

The emolument was within RMB1,000,000.

(c)  During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no emoluments have
been paid by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

Earnings BEF|

Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic RRGESRERB TR AT
earnings per share (Profit for the year (RREHE AEL
attributable to owners of the Company) REERE)

1% % 89 B € 75 A FE ¥ 1,000,000 7T JA
A o

(c) BE=Z-—WN&ER=Z—=%+=A
=t+t—HLEFE  AEEBEAES
SAEERFATIMNME  EAR
Sl AASK AN AR S B B By 2B sk E A
REBMHIFEE o

13 BREF

A0 R BRI A (5 SR E A R T
TR -

2014
—E—MF

2013
—T—=F
RMB’000
AREFTT

RMB’000
AR® TR

62,725 122,198

2014

—g-nF

Number of shares RH&HE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AT EGRRERZAH
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings 38 AN S 5 B

per share

5,994,109,000 5,941,049,000

No diluted earnings per share has been presented because no dilutive potential
ordinary shares exist for both 2014 and 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BERRME

14

15

DIVIDENDS

Proposed final dividend of HK0.69 cents BORAR AR B B 1% 0.69 1L

14 RE

2014
—E-mF

2013
=%
RMB’000
ARBEFT

RMB’000
AR¥ T

(2013: HK0.67 cents) per share (ZZ—=%F : 0.67/81L) 32,638 31,565
Final dividend in respect of year ended REAMET T 2BEZT—=F

31 December 2013, approved and paid +=—A=+—BIEFERERE

during the year, of HK0.67 cents BRR0.67 B (=ZZ—=45 : 0.67/81l)

(2012: HKO.67 cents) per share 31,882 31,496

A final dividend of HKO0.69 cents per share has been proposed by the Directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The final dividend proposed after the end of the year has not been
recognised as a liability as at the end of the reporting period.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of RMB1,857,000 (2013:
RMB20,656,000).

TEBRHERABRAR —B—EFEFR

15

BEEEEERARHRESER0.698 - 1A
FFRRNEE R RIBE R LR - 757
1EE o NFERRERE IR RIS L RFE
RRMERRNEE -

RATEEAEGEER
RRRER AEGEEARY1,857,0007T

(=Z=—=%: AR¥20,656,0007T) EFfEA
AR ISHRERAFEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S OF A 5 3R R B

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

88

16 Y% BELRE

&
Plant and
equipment
Plant and Motor Other under
Buildings  machinery vehicles machinery construction Total
HEBER
BF RBER#ESR AE Hities Eid ] &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥ETT ARETT ARET:
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2013 R-T—=F
—HA—H 324,407 654,537 14,666 44,697 262,164 1,300,471
Additions NE 179 7,120 1,868 1,673 511,484 522,224
Transfers upon completion ek A B 177,233 462,296 - 2,560 (642,089) -
Disposals HeE (141) (885) (1,320) (927) - (3,273)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F
and 1 January 2014 +-A=+—H
E—F-DF
—A—H 501,678 1,123,068 15,214 47,9038 131,559 1,819,422
Additions NE - 3,992 1,779 668 267,064 273,503
Transfers upon completion 2 Ak B 43 - 33,324 - - (33,324) -
Disposals/written-off & B (4,884) (56,678) (1,052) (3,003) - (65,617)
Reclassification ENHR (19,974) (3,318) 65 23,237 - -
At 31 December 2014 R-—T—F
+=-A=+—H 476,820 1,100,388 15,996 68,805 365,299 2,027,308
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERBE
and impairment
At 1 January 2013 R-T—=F
—HA—H 122,535 369,153 6,293 24,171 - 522,152
Depreciation charge for FATEER
the year (note 9) (BtzE9) 14,513 69,199 2,267 5,506 - 91,485
Disposals HeE (75) (290) (1,239) (906) - (2,510)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZT—=F
and 1 January 2014 +=-—A=+—8
RZZT—MF
—H—H 136,973 438,062 7,321 28,771 - 611,127
Depreciation charge for FAFEER
the year (note 9) (PHEE9) 20,077 89,640 2,468 5,289 - 117,474
Impairment charge for FAREER
the year (note 9) (BF5E9) 77,556 8,042 35 804 - 86,437
Disposals/written-off HE (1,042) (46,781) (1,040) (2,232) - (51,095)
Reclassification BHHH (14,819) (3,318) 35 18,102 - -
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—E
+-HA=t+—H 218,745 485,645 8,819 50,734 - 763,943
Net carrying value BREEE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—E
+=-A=+—H 258,075 614,743 7177 18,071 365,299 1,263,365
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=%F
+=-A=t+—H 364,705 685,006 7,893 19,132 131,559 1,208,295
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHAKAER

16

17

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16 Y%  BEKRE (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2014, additions of property, plant and BE-_Z-—NE+-_A=+—HBIFE &
equipment included an amount of RMB6,636,000 (2013: RMB99,583,000) BEVE BERIXMERE-—F5WEDE -
transferred from deposits for acquisition of property, plant and equipment. BMEERSENRESCHELNESBEARKE
6,636,0007C( =T —=4 : AR 99,683,000
TT) e
Due to the cessation of manufacturing operations of the previous production base HRZE—NFE TN EFRIEEAMRE N
located in Shouguang and relocation of the production to the new production SEREMEEBE WHEELIFBEN
base during the second half of 2014, the management carried out an impairment EEEMET  EEEEYHAMNEERA
review on the manufacturing plant, machinery and other equipment remained in BRTRVAEERE « a3 R A MR EETRE
the previous production base. The recoverable amounts of these assets are Ral o REBEMNIRESEIIERBR)EA
determined as (i) their fair value less cost of disposal or (i) their value in use, FEREEXRAKHEFREE(UAREH
whichever is higher. These assets include manufacturing plant, machinery and RE)METE ZTEERREERE - T
other equipment that are unmovable (amounted to RMB68,872,000 as to RERB RS R MR E(EEEERIEE
manufacturing assets and RMB17,565,000 as to non-manufacturing assets EBEDEEARY 68,872,000t R AR
respectively). Considering (i) the physical condition of these unmovable machinery #17,565,0007T ) © B ()% F T RS Bk
and other equipment and (i) the fact that the land on which the manufacturing B REMBENERMR - B i) REERTE
plant is situated is not going to be used for industrial purpose, according to the ERMFIEMENAKRERRE - AERE
future development plan of the region in which the previous production base was FrETETESREIEXRSE  EEERA
located, the management considered the fair value less cost of disposal of these ZEBEZATER T ERANESERMY - I
assets immaterial and made a full provision of RMB86,437,000. B YEH 2 BB A R % 86,437,000 7T ©
In connection to the relocation, the management revisited the nature of certain HRETHE EERECETREETY
property, plant and equipment and reclassified those items within the different ¥ BERXEOEE  WiKZEFEE BN
categories of property, plant and equipment for better presentation purpose. PDEEYHE  BEREZBEZTRER - LAE
EEENZ -
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17 HEAHEER
Group
rEHE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Cost A
At 1 January R—A—H8 166,125 117,342
Additions NE 72,071 48,783
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 238,196 166,125
Accumulated amortisation E-4g 5]
At 1 January W—A—H 14,206 11,683
Amortisation charge for the year (note 9) FNEHE A (FIFE9) 3,820 2,623
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 18,026 14,206
Net book amount BRERE
At 31 December R+t—A=+—8H 220,170 151,919
Land in the PRC held under medium-term lease  #zr0 SR E b R4 B9+ b 220,170 151,919
Analysed for reporting purposes: E2MABM DI -
Current assets MENE B 4,917 3,467
Non-current assets FEMENEE 215,253 148,452
220,170 151,919

During the year ended 31 December 2014, additions of prepaid lease payments
included an amount of RMB40,115,000 (2013: RMB47,340,000) transferred from
deposits for acquisition of prepaid lease payments.

BRI EA A R A A

REE_Z-—NE+-_A=+—RALFE -
FBNHEERNEINSEEEE A REENAE
ERNRELHARKEAL0,115000 T (==
—=% : AR¥47,340,0007C) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S OF A 5 3R R B

18 SUBSIDIARIES 18 KEAH
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (@) RKHBRATNKRE
Company
AATH
2014 2013
—E-0OF —T—=

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETFIT

Unlisted investments, at cost JEETHIEE R AR) 159,121 159,121
The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2014: RZE—NE+=ZA=1T—H&K B

RNAEIRFNWET -

Issued and
fully paid up/
Place of Place of registered Interest
Name of companies incorporation operation capital held (%) Principal activities
ERITREE JIEST 3
AEEH MR E KR R E A (%) EEBHEK
Sourcestar Worldwide Inc. British Virgin Hong Kong Us$240 100  Investment holding
Sourcestar Worldwide Inc. Islands B ordinary shares AR
EBERRES 240 T E AR
China Starch Group Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS$1 100  Investment holding
FERHEEBR AR e BB ordinary share BB ER

1B TR E R

Shandong Shouguang Juneng PRC PRC RMB480,000,000 100  Manufacturing and sale of
Golden Corn Development a2 AR ¥ 480,000,000 7T cornstarch, lysine and
Co., Ltd."? related products
(“Golden Corn”) BUE RIHE FRBRY -

RSN ERES ERER A N HAERE R
BRAR2
(T&EXK]D)

Shouguang Golden Far East PRC PRC US$9,600,000 100  Research, development,
Modified Starch Company Y 22} 9,600,000 7T manufacture and sale of
Limited' modified starch and

ShERREERNERAR" related products

e FEREESE
B K ABRAE

Linging Deneng Golden Corn  PRC PRC RMB200,000,000 91 Manufacturing and

Bio Limited" 8 i i AR ¥ 200,000,000 7T sale of cornstarch,
EEEES TRENMER AR starch-based

sweetener and

related products
BUE RHE FRBRD

BRI HE R AR S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHAKAER

18

19

20

21

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
L Interests are held indirectly by the Company.
2 The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise.
8 The entity is an equity joint venture enterprise.

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries
The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,
non-trade, interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF PREPAID LEASE 19
PAYMENTS

The amount represents the initial deposit paid to the Municipal Government of
Shouguang for the acquisition of land located in Shouguang.

B A = (A7)

(a) RHBRATNRE(H)
C ARRRMEREESR
2 EEBA-RRALE-
* REBA-RAEEELY-

(b) EWRHEDTIE
FE W BT B A RIFRIBLAE TTEHE - BIE
BS - 2R BEAREAEREREE

WEBANEHERNRES

B RS RE B MBIV S R L3 [RF
MBS RES

INVENTORIES 20 #E

Group

REE
2014 2013
—E2-—mEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETT
Raw materials B 197,795 222,748
Work in progress bt 21,341 27,155
Finished goods SRR 57,543 134,978
276,679 384,881

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in “cost of sales”

amounted to RMB3,751,919,000 (2013: RMB2,914,034,000).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

BRABAI R AHERE ] HEFEERA
BARES,751,919,0007c (=T —=4F : A
R 2,914,0834,0007T) °

21 EBEZREMERR

Group Company
rEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-—mF —ET—=F —E-—NF —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT AR¥T T ARBTFT
Trade receivables B 5 WK 147,116 165,181 - -
Bank acceptance bills SRITENZE 185,503 308,461 - -
Other receivables and H fth e U R R TR 30
prepayments 48,649 49,932 354 353
381,268 523,574 354 353

PERBERARAT —B—MEER 91



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S OF A 5 3R R B

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21 EBEFRHEMEBERKE)

B 5 K E ARG BREE A T 5 & &5t

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in the

92

following currencies:

':

Group Company
AEE PN
2014 2014
—g-mF —g-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT AR¥TR AREFTT
RMB AREE 372,871 518,040 - -
HK$ BT 498 497 354 353
us$ ETT 7,899 5,037 -
381,268 523,574 354 358
(a) Trade and other receivables (a) ESZRHEMEKRIK

The Group normally grants credit period ranging from 0 to 120 days (2013:
0 to 120 days) to customers.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of the reporting period is
shown as follows:

AEE—RETEFNEEHHT
—B-tHB(ZE—=%: %
—BA=TH)T -

AT BRI E HARE 5 R RRAORRER
DT

Group Company
AEHE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
= ke = ks —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ETTT AR¥T T ARBFT
0-30 days TE=1H 102,828 110,794 - -
31-60 days =t+—=/,x1H 21,621 21,314 - -
61-90 days ANT—ENTH 6,711 12,478 - -
Over 90 days h+BRE 15,956 20,595 - -
147,116 165,181 - -

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB25,992,000 (2013: RMB28,068,000)
which are past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers of whom there is no recent history of default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHAKAER

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21 EBEFRHEMEWKR(E)
(a) Trade and other receivables (Continued) (a) EZRHMEWR(E)
Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired is B 2 HE I BRE R E 5 YR AR
shown as follows: BRAOMAT -
Group Company
REE PN
2014 2014 2013
—Z—MmF —E—MF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT AR¥T T ARETT
1-30 days =Z==FE 13,916 15,143 - -
31-60 days =t+—%/x+H 2,229 2,817 - -
61-90 days ANtTt—&ENTA 1,560 1,928 - -
Over 90 days N+ARE 8,287 8,180 - -
25,992 28,068 - -

(b)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all other receivables aged between
0-30 days.

Included in trade and other receivables is an amount due from non-
controlling interests of RMB7,683,000 (2013: RMB11,833,000). Detail of
balances with related companies are set out in note 33(ii)). No impairment
has been made for receivables from related companies.

Bank acceptance bills

(b)

RZE—NOFER_T—=F+=A
=+—8 ' HbEKRANERREZEH
ATE=+H-

B 5 Ko H B U 5k B 1 B AR FEFR AR AR
R RIE AR 7,683,0007C (= F
—=%: AK%¥11,833,0007C) ° [
EN A AR 2 5 1B B BT 5 33(iil) o fE
U BEE A R FIE N ERL(E

RITERRE

Group Company
rEE PN

2014 2013 2014 2013
—EF—mE =H==4F —E-pmE ===
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥ETTT AR¥ TR AR¥ETT
Endorsed bills EEEE 131,055 123,970 - -
Bills on hand FHER 54,448 140,458 = -
Discounted bills AR R = 44,033 - -
185,503 308,461 - -

The bank acceptance bills are normally with maturity period of 180 days
(2013: 180 days). There is no recent history of default on bank acceptance
bills.

As at 31 December 2014, bank acceptance bills of RMB4,692,000 were
pledged to banks for securing bills payables. As at 31 December 2013,
bank acceptance bills of RMB9,000,000 and RMB44,033,000 were
pledged to banks for securing bills payables and cash advances for
discounted bills respectively.

BRI EA A R A A

ROEALZBE -—RIABBARA
—BATBE(ZZE—=%: —FNT
B) o SRITAN RIB T BRE L

R-B—WE+=_A=+—08 AR
& 4,692,000 7T HY SR 1T H L RIBE B K
BT IRIT  EARMNEERAER - B
—E-—=F+-A=+—H  ARK
9,000,000 7Tt ¥ 44,033,000 7T HJ R 17
EAEROEATRT  DRERE
NEE KR Z IR S B RNEA -
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22 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 22 EEARTER
At 31 December 2014, the pledged bank deposits were pledged to a bank for R-Z—mE+—_A=+—H EA—%K§
securing bills payables (note 29). At 31 December 2013, the pledged bank THRFEEBIRTER - (EREMNZE(H
deposits were pledged to a bank for securing a bank borrowing (note 27). The H2)MEE - R_FE—=F+=-_A=+—
deposits were denominated in RMB. B BR—RBTEBEEBRITER - F
RIBITER (27 KR - TRTIAAR
BEETE -

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND FIXED DEPOSITS 23 RERBAESEBYR=@ANULE
WITH MATURITY PERIOD OVER THREE MONTHS MR

Group Company
AEE AAHE
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E2-mF —T—=%F —E—MNF —T—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFTT AR¥TT AREFTT

Cash at bank and in hand RITARESRFERE
(notes (i) and (i) (B2 () R (i) 184,568 155,200 2,003 6,807

Fixed deposits with initial maturity — RZ|HE A =18 F A L&Y
period over three months TE HATE 3 (B 5E (i) K (i)
(notes (i) and (ii) 430,000 480,000 - -

614,568 635,200 2,003 6,807
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANC
SHAKAER

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND FIXED DEPOSITS
WITH MATURITY PERIOD OVER THREE MONTHS
(Continued)

23

Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits with maturity period over three
months are denominated in the following currencies:

IAL STATEMENTS

RERhBESEYR=EANULE
BN (&)

A2 MRS EEY R =87 A _LFEHFRA
THIEEE

Group Company
AEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—ZF—mE —F= —F-—mE —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREETTT AR®T T ARBTFT

RMB AR 612,076 625,499 - -

HK$ BT 2,286 7,169 2,003 6,807

us$ =TT 206 2,532 - -

614,568 635,200 2,003 6,807

Notes: BsE -

(i) Cash at banks earns interest at daily floating rates of bank deposit. (i) RITHR S THIRBITHERN BIF BHIFA 2 -

(ii) These fixed deposits earn interest of 6.8%-6.85% (2013: 6.6%-6.8%) per annum. (ii) HWEFHERIREFNR68EC85E(ZF

—=% :6.6E6.8F)HIMFL -

(iii) The bank balances are deposited with credit worthy banks with no recent history of (i) SRATAEBR D17 IR 3 B BB X0 RR 8 B
defaults. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits BEERT -RERBEEBYR=MEA A
with maturity period over three months approximate to their fair values. FESREFROEREERE QN FERSE

(iv) As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank balances of RMB612,278,000 (2013: (iv) RZZE-—mOFE+—A=+—H AEER
RMB628,031,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of these TTHARARYE 612,278,000 (=T —=4F :
funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange AR¥628,031,0007T) 577 AR B HERAT ©
control promulgated by the PRC government. 1% 5% 5 & © B I o B 78 38 <7 P B BT AR A

HISNEE 6137 Bl K2 35 61
24 SHARE CAPITAL 24 BX

Number of
shares Share capital
RBEE ;&S
'000 HK$’'000
T & FAT
Authorised JERIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each EREEOA0BIT Z EEIK
At 31 December 2013 and 2014 R_E—=FF T NF+_A=1+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
RERBERERAT —B-NEFH 95
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24 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 24 FRA(#E)
Number of
shares Share capital
RHEE ;&
000 HK$’000 RMB’000
T A FHT AREFTT
Issued and fully paid EETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE10EIL 2 EBR
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—H—H 5,883,097 588,309 523,670
Shares issued under scrip dividend BB AR B 5T 812517
scheme Z D 109,032 10,903 8,687
At 31 December 2013 R=—E—=F+=-A=+—H
and 1 January 2014 ;k=F—mF—HA—AH 5,992,129 599,212 532,357
Shares issued under scrip dividend RIRARRAR BT 81217
scheme 2D 3,763 377 299
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+=-—A=+—H 5,995,892 599,589 532,656
The following shares were issued to shareholders who elected scrip shares in lieu RTARZZ-—MER_T—=FRENR
of cash dividend pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme in 2014 and 2013 REFTEIZETTERBBBARERMNEREA S
respectively. The new ordinary shares rank pari passu in all respects with the fE BB BIAR (D o FTE @A S5 mEAR
existing ordinary shares of the Company. ARRB L BREERFMAL -
Number of Scrip Share Share
shares price capital premium Total
REOEE KREE® ;&N R ERE &%
’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
T Br  ARETIT ARBTT ARETT
Share issued in 2014 as R —WEFEBITER
2013 final scrip dividend —E—=FKH
K ERD 3,763 0.1898 299 269 568
Share issued in 2013 as RIZE—=F8ITER
2012 final scrip dividend —TE—_FKH
KBRS 109,032 0.2284 8,687 11,154 19,841
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25 RESERVES

26

25 f#E

Share Special Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
B 6 RE Rl E &N RitEE &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETIT ARETTT ARBTFT AREFTT
(note (i) (note (i)
g0 (PR 32 (i)

At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—Hf—H 222,046 108,651 16,730 (81,148) 266,279

Loss for the year REEEE - - - (20,656) (20,656)

2012 final dividend T FRHERE (31,496) - - - (31,496)

Issue of shares under scrip RIB AR S5 81317

dividend scheme 2 Bn 11,154 - - - 11,154

At 31 December 2013 R-ZZE—=F+-A=+—H

and 1 January 2014 k=T—mE—-A—H 201,704 108,651 16,730 (101,804) 225,281

Loss for the year AEEER - = = (1,857) (1,857)

2013 final dividend T =FRERE (31,882 - - - (31,882)

Issue of shares under scrip REARR S5 81517

dividend scheme 25 269 - - - 269

At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=A=+—H 170,091 108,651 16,730 (103,661) 191,811

Notes: BffEE -

(i) Under the Cayman Companies Law, the share premium of the Company is available i) RERSHSAEE  EAKER KK
for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its HANEESCRR T » AR BRI IR G% B[]
Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the SRR 2R SR AL S R BREERR S
distribution of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the Dk RNABIBBRENEEERATE
ordinary course of business. TR B HRE 7 o

(ii) Special reserve of the Company and the Group represents (a) the difference between (ii) ARARANEENFRIEEE  @ARQF
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium issued by the Company and TR A EEMRDGEEEREAE
the aggregate of the share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries acquired SR ATIRB M B D R R A KRG 5B
upon the Group’s reorganisation; and (b) the difference between the consideration wEZENERE: kb EEHBQEE
paid by the direct subsidiary for the entire registered capital of the indirect subsidiary B R A A 2 E Akl & AR A ) A (8 B2 R
and the amount of registered capital of the indirect subsidiary. BEWNBARNZMERZ B ZEEE -

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 26 EEBREEE

Deferred taxes assets are calculated in respect of temporary differences under

the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

BRI EA A R A A

REBIREE I E R EZHREE BEER
ARHREBRZATCEBMLER LB LHE
REOTRETE -
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26 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued) 26 EEMBIBEE(E)
The movements on deferred tax assets in respect of impairment of property, plant MOE  BERBERENEEHEEER
and equipment are as follows: BET -
Group
rEH
2014
—E—MEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
At 1 January nw—H—H 1,091 1,254
Credited/(charged) to the profit or loss st AR/ (REBFR) 21,446 (163)
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 22,537 1,091
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that RIERIEE E TR AR AR - A
the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. FERAR 75 ) 5 AT 5 48 2R SR & AR Bt H B IR AE
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of RMB1,396,000 (2013: AR - ANEBE & AR 8,461,08070 (=
RMB865,000) in respect of losses amounting to RMB8,461,080 (2013: T—=4F: AR¥¥5,243,768 ) A] £ R Hi /%
RMB5,243,768) that can be carried forward indefinitely against future taxable E B R R E B IE & 2 A R % 1,396,000
income. T(ZE—=%: AR#¥865,0007T) °
27 BORROWINGS 27 &R
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-pmE =T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREETTT
Cash advances for discounted bills, secured BRIR IR S BTN - AL - 44,033
Bank borrowings, secured (note (i) RITIER - AHER (HFE()) 90,000 60,000
Bank borrowings, unsecured (note (i) SRATIE SN - IR (X)) 190,000 319,565
Government loan, unsecured (note (i) BAFE R - S (RE i) 4,432 7,091
284,432 430,689
Less: Amount due within one year shown B ERBBEETN—FR
under current liabilities BB (281,550) (426,921)
Non-current liabilities FRBEEAR 2,882 3,768
Notes: Boex
(i) At 31 December 2014, bank borrowings of RMB90,000,000 were secured by (i) RZF—WF+-—A=+—8 " RITEX
guarantee provided by a subsidiary of the Group. At 31 December 2013, bank A R ¥ 90,000,000 7T A 2 £ B — R M BB 2
borrowing of RMB60,000,000 was secured by pledged bank deposits of AIFTIRMERERIF - RZT—=F+=
RMB10,000,000 (note 22). A=+—8 " 1755 A K% 60,000,000

JC A A R # 10,000,000 7T K E SR 1715
SAEHEAR (MizE22) ©

(ii) Government loan represented government assistance provided to Golden Corn, for (ii) BNERESATHBRER ST MEN
its corn refinery production by Finance Bureau of Shouguang City in April 2004. The AR E KRN A& ZE [ € FRBE A BUT
balance is unsecured, interest-free and fully repayable by 6 April 2019. According to BB ZEHRREER RERENRZFE
the loan agreement, the loan is repayable by 11 annual instalment commencing from —NEMANBRESEE - RIEERD

6 April 2009. & BERARCE
D+ —HEE -

TAFHARNBRIEF
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27 BORROWINGS (Continued) 27 fEX(E)
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as R NEFEER=_FE—=F+=-fF=+—
follows: H - AEBAERER AT BREEE

Bank borrowings and
cash advances for
discounted bills Government loan Total
SBITERR

BRERASBN BFER &
2014 2013 2014 2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—=F —E-mF =—T—= “E-mE —T—=fF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARBTT AR®BTR ARBTT ARBTR ARETT

Wholly repayable within ERAFAEBH

5 years Hz
Within 1 year —FR 280,000 423,598 1,550 3,323 281,550 426,921
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF = - 886 886 886 886
Between 2 and 5 years MEZRF = - 1,996 2,659 1,996 2,659
280,000 423,598 4,432 6,868 284,432 430,466
Wholly repayable after BEREFEEBEH
5 years EHiE - - - 223 - 223
280,000 423,598 4,432 7,091 284,432 430,689
The government loan was non-interest bearing. The cash advances for BFERAEE - BIRERB SRR KR
discounted bills and bank borrowings carried interest ranging from 5.7% to 6.1% BHIRE7TEZE61E(ZZE—=F:53EF
(20183: 5.3% to 6.3%) per annum. 6.3[F) FAEHEFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S OF A 5 3R R B

27 BORROWINGS (Continued) 27 B (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are approximate their fair values. AEEERNEAEEEQAFEES - A%
The carry amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following E S RHOEREEN T E%EHE -
currencies:
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—Z2-—NF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFT
RMB AR 284,432 351,124
Us$ e - 79,565
284,432 430,689
28 DEFERRED INCOME 28 REIEWA
Group
rEE
Steam
connection Government
income grants Total
ZORERBA BB ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETTT AR¥ETTT AREETTT
At 1 January 2013 R-—Z—=F—HF—H 17,722 8,908 26,630
Additions 10 1,357 183,600 14,957
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FEH#HE (M) (3,283) (459) (3,742)
At 31 December 2013 R-_ZE—=%+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2014 k—ZF—mF—HA—H 15,796 22,049 37,845
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FEHHE(MsE6) (3,319) (459) (3,778)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—ME+-_A=+—H 12,477 21,590 34,067
Steam connection income represents the payment received/receivable from RAERBRAERERZAEED K EK
customers for the connection of steam pipelines. BEHFRIE o
Government grants represent the payments received from Shouguang City BB ARS X REBERREELZE KR
Finance Bureau and Linging City Finance Bureau for the development of the Bma RS EmI BB LR ST BB
production complex in Shouguang and Linging respectively. HYFAIE o
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29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

29 EZREMENRK

Group Company
rEE b N|

2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-lmF —E—=F —E2-mF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R AREBFT AR¥ TR AREETT

Trade payables B S5 EMNR 113,801 89,784 - -

Bills payables EAEE 10,692 9,000 - -
Total trade and bills payables Z S ENR R EMNZE

4aFE 124,493 98,784 - -

Advances from customers BE#IR 51,813 63,430 - -

Deposits HIED 11,742 11,458 - -

Sales commission HERS 2,358 2,327 = =

Other tax payables Hth A~ R 8 22,676 16,129 - =

Accrued expenses FEETE 13,170 13,540 1,146 755

Payroll and welfare payables FEfES RERN 6,709 9,101 — =

Payable for construction and EER

equipment R 230,328 292,403 - =

Others EHAh 2,320 3,484 - -

341,116 411,872 1,146 755

465,609 510,656 1,146 755

Included in trade payables is an amount due to non-controlling interests of

RMB29,729,000 (2013: nil).

As at 31 December 2014, bills payables are secured by bank acceptance bills of
RMB4,692,000 (2013: RMB9,000,000) (note 21(b)) and pledged bank deposits of
RMB6,000,000 (2013: nil) (note 22).

The following is the ageing analysis for the trade and bills payables at the end of
the reporting period:

B RN RO EREN IR IR RS MR IE
AREE29,729,000 L (=T —=14F : &) °

R-ZE—NmNE+-—A=+—0 BENHE
BAARYE 4,602,000 (=ZF—=F : AR
# 9,000,000 7T ) Ky $R 177 . = 4 (K 5E 21 (b))
M AR¥6,000,000 (=T —=F: &)K
BEIRIRT TR (M 5E22) fEHAF

AT RBERRE S RNRRENEEROER

DA

Group Company
REE PN

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-—QmE =H==4F —E-QmE =H==0F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥ETTT AR¥T R ARKETT
0-60 days TEXTH 77,520 81,427 - -
61-90 days ANT—ZEN+H 22,963 2,555 - -
Over 90 days N+BRE 24,010 14,802 - -
124,493 98,784 - -

BRI EA A R A A

—E-mEEH
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29

30

102

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The average credit period on purchases is 80 days (2013: 80 days). The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
paid within the credit time frame.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in the
following currencies:

29

B RHEMENRK(E)

RENFHEEHANTRA(ZE =%
NFH) » REEE FIEM B ERE B -
VAREIRFE BN NG RIE RN ERS T -

B 5 KEAMENFNREENR T &5
B:

Group Company
AEH AAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF = —E2-ImF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AR¥TT ARBFT
RMB AREE 448,774 496,806 - -
HK$ BT 1,192 809 1,146 755
Us$ e 15,643 13,041 - —
465,609 510,656 1,146 755
EMPLOYEE HOUSING DEPOSITS 30 EIEEGFHES

The Group offers quarters to the staff with the aim of promoting long service with
the Group. These quarters are constructed by the Group and offered to staff for
application on a periodic basis. Due to the excess demand of staff quarters and
the relatively substantial construction costs involved, the staff is required to place
housing deposit to the Group. The Group utilises the amount received from staff
as general working capital.

The employee housing deposits are interest-free, unsecured and repayable one
month upon the return of the staff quarters by the employee or termination of
employment.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

AEERMBTRHEES  EESEIENE
HRBALE - EUBEEAAEERE &
HHE TR - AR B TEE BN B
BRERNERKA - B TARMKNEEHNE
ERER - AREFARE B THOFIAES
—REBES °

ETFRERES NSRS  BEMARNETR
BETESEIEILERR —EARNERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHAKAER

31

32

COMMITMENTS

(@) Commitments for total future minimum lease payments
under a non-cancellable operating lease

31

EYE

(a) BEFITHHEELHEHENAER
BEHRENREERE

Group Company
rEH PN
2014 2014
—E-{F —=—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT ARETT ARKETT
No later than 1 year —FR 814 834 492 488
Later than 1 year and —FEERAFA
no later than 5 years 743 1,188 369 854
Later than 5 years RFEZ% 452 - - _
2,009 2,022 861 1,342

(b) Commitments in respect of capital expenditure

(b) EXRBEXZEE

2014 2013
—E-mF =

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT

Authorised but not contracted for in respect of:  BELiZAE{EKETLY
— property, plant and equipment — M - WELRE 101,668 296,800
— prepaid lease payments — BREER 38,160 18,820
139,828 315,620

Contracted but not provided for in respect of: BRI B R B
— property, plant and equipment — ¥ - MELXE 145,661 210,226

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 5 September 2007 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing
on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of share capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, no options have been granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

BRI AR AR

32

MR XN RENR S

AN E O EE AR REET &) ([REAERt &1 )) ToiR IR
R-TTLFNARTREBN—IRRERM
Ry TEENRMESERAERESRMH
RE) - RIBBIRE S EFSMEER
EE (BEARRREMNBARNESR)KH
BREARBARR N - BRE S
RERHz BT FRER - BITRBIERE
P =t B o AN X BB AR e (A L At RS A A T
) FTA B R B AR TTE R AAE T Al B2 35
TR EE LR - & XTI BBEARFT
iR 2 BT AR AN 30%

R_E—NFER-_ZE—Z=F+=-A=+—
B - BERRERE S B -
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33
The Group entered into the following material transactions with related parties
which are not regarded as connected transactions as defined under the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited:

(i) Transactions with related parties

Purchase of electricity and steam from BRI R EREE

non-controlling interests BAMEA
Provision of staffing and staff messing services MR AR R A N EIR
to non-controlling interests & B TIKR MRS
Compensation from non-controlling interests for — JEIZERX ISR EZSBLE 1

K ABINRET PR O FH 1A

accidental failures in the supplies of electricity
and steam

BELIRS
AEBEREES R T IEEEHARS
FARARES EHRANEETRBRIE
BERBZEARS

() BHEETETZIRS

2014
—m#

2013
—T—=F
RMB’000
ARETFIT

RMB’000
ARET

68,331 75,225
1,029 2,946
- 1,291

These transactions are conducted in accordance with their respective
contract prices.

(i) Key management compensation

ZERSIIREEXENADERE

(i) F=EEEENRH

2013

—E-pmE —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR R¥ETT
Short-term benefits ’;EEHH%E%IJ 1,489 3,489
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIETH SR 106 94
1,595 3,583

(iii) Balances with a related party

(i) EERAET AR

2014
— &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Amount due from non-controlling interests JiE UL SR S S BR A 2 Y FR TR 7,683 11,833
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE A~ FEHE % A% BR A 25 O RN 0E (29,729) =
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and shall be settled in HERDEER 28 WARESE

accordance with the respective credit terms.
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